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To Our Shareholders:

This year tested the metal and depth of the
Company’s management team and staff. The
untimely deaths of our patriarch and former
Chairman, Bill G. Jones and Bart Scharlach,
President of our Fort Stockton location, as well as
administrator over our investment portfolio, caused
the corporate family to pull together and re-group.
In 2004 the Bank completed the finishing phases of
upgrading our loan review, audit, technology,
compliance, credit administration and other control
and efficiencies to prepare for our next period of
growth and expansion. All of these factors
represented real challenges for the staff; however
we feel that these tests were passed and the Company
is stronger than ever and prepared for the future.

Chairman of the Board and CEO Art Scharlach
2004 Highlights and President Ty Abston
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Net earnings for the year were

$3,660,000 with earnings per share of $1.25.

Trust Services-$66 million under management, 2004 growth of 35%.
Secondary mortgage loan originations of over $35 million for the year.
A 40% growth for 2004 in our Guaranty On-line customer base.
Continued transition of management for the future.
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We are postured to expand and continue growing this Company, while better leveraging our assets to move toward our
targeted 65% efficiency ratio. We are also striving to improve the net interest margin to create a more profitable investment
for the stockholder, while not cutting back on service or relationships.

We continue to look for expzinsion opportunities that have a strategic fit within our business plan. We opened two new
locations this year, one in Mt. Vernon and a second location in Texarkana, Texas. Although there is a cost to earnings with
this expansion for the near term, these two new locations should make positive contributions to the future earnings and
growth of the Company.

The growing cost of compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley remains a real challenge for a small publicly traded company. We
continue to look at ways to address this cost and will study future options to control its effect on our shareholder returns.

We have also been focusing on the transition of management for the past several years and feel the team is in place to carry
the Company forward, stronger than ever, while maintaining the values and purpose that the Company has maintained for
over 35 years. Our company’s strategic plan centers around the goal of remaining independent and continuing to serve our
communities through investment, service and personal relationships.

Word of mouth remains our best source of growth, so please continue to refer your friends and customers to Guaranty
Bond Bank. We want to thank you, our shareholders, for your continued support and confidence in Guaranty Bond Bank
and Guaranty Bancshares.

Arthur B. Scharlach, Jr Tyson T. Abston
Chairman of the Board and CEO President




Art Scharlach
Chairman of the Board / CEO

Ty Abston
President

Cappy Payne
Executive Vice President / CFO

GUARANTY BOND BANK EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

It all started in small town banks several
decades ago. There were no computers. No high-
tech auto tellers. Just a few dedicated, local
people who were looking out for their neighbors’
money. To these early bankers, values like loy-
alty, integrity and friendship were just as impor-
tant as the value of their bank deposits. Guaranty
Bond Bank’s commitment is to rekindle this type
of personal, community banking.

Our commitment lives on today. Within the
diverse ranks of our executive and senior manage-
ment teams, years of collective banking experi-

Kirk Lee
Executive-Vice President

ence are coupled with the understanding that our
customers are best served by local banking officers
who are involved with and value their customers and
their communities.

As a new generation takes its place in the ranks of
executive management, we strive to exceed the
expectations of our customers by offering them more
than they expect from a bank. Our executive manage-
ment is committed to those original values of com-
munity banking passed on from previous generations

that have steered our success since 1913.

Martin Bell
Executive Vice President




GUARANTY BOND BANK SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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WHAT MAKES GUARANTY BOND DIFFERENT?

Customer Service

Our success can be attributed g
to two things that all our ] ey
people are known for: good | B . e
values and hard work. One of i
the most important values a N
bank can demonstrate is |
commitment. Visit our bank
and you can see our employees
demonstrating their
commitment to customers
every hour of every day. We provide the best banking services and value for
their hard earned dollars. We start by providing a personal atmosphere that
makes us much more approachable than other banks. We believe in being
friendly and making a person feel welcome every single time they come in or
call. We realize that each customer 1s unique and has individual needs, so we
tailor our products to offer options that are full of added advantages to others
that are basic and easy to understand to meet the needs of all of our customers.
We feel that our personalized customer service is the kind that draws customers
to Guaranty Bond Bank and keeps them with us.

Mortgage/Loans

Our primary focus is lending money, developing businesses, expanding
commercial opportunities, and providing resources for real estate acquisitions.
We have a strong track record of providing the initial financing for start-up
businesses and helping them grow. Our
lending teams are equipped to make
quick decisions and provide tailored
solutions for our customers. We listen

- and analyze each situation separately,

| providing immediate solutions

.
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Beyond traditional banking, Guaranty Bond
Trust and Investment Services demonstrate our
commitment to our customers, by offering a
source of investment advice that is objective
and unbiased. We offer the expertise,
investment performance, and privacy of a big
city financial services firm with the personal
attention a customer could expect from a
member of their community. We want our

" } clients to have that “coming home” feeling as
4 ¢ we work together on their investment goals.
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Community Service

We know that all banks offer the same
products and services. So what
separates us from the rest? We feel it is
our commitment to serving the
community. We are fortunate to be a
part of some of the most vibrant
communities in Texas. With that good
fortune, comes responsibility. We put
our efforts where they belong...in the
communities that we serve.

Our employees are involved in over
one hundred non-profit organizations
and donated thousands of hours to
charitable projects. The prosperity,
growth, and commitment reflect the
value we expect to guide us through to
a strong, secure future. Guaranty Bond
8 Bank understands that the relationship
is the key.




Bruce Harwell
Pittsbury

Travis Mauldin
Texarkana

Virgil Jones
Mt Vernon

Bob Clark

wSim Rickimond
¢ Commerce

Paris.

Craig Roberts
Joe Rose : Sulphur Springs
Bogata x .

We earn customer loyalty by knowing our custom-
ers’ and clients’ situations and catering to their needs.
With twelve locations, management has assured that
decisions affecting our customers are made locally.
Whether it is a loan request or a deposit inquiry, we
are committed to having an answer for our customers
as quickly as possible.

By keeping management and the direction of each
office within their respective towns, we are able to
stay in constant touch with the needs of our custom-
ers and communities.




Corporate Officers
Art Scharlach

Ty Abston

Cappy Payne
Martin Bell

Kirk Lee

Location Presidents
Joe Rose

Bob Clark

Virgil Jones

Jim Richmond
Bruce Harwell
Craig Roberts
Travis Mauldin
Senior Vice Presidents
Steve Bledsoe
Chuck Capel

Stan Garrett

Tanis Hager

Judy Langford
Latrel McCallum
Mary Ann Munsinger
Vice Presidents

Jo Anschutz
Candy Boswell
Kendal Burns
Kenny Dority

Gene Erwin

Tammy Foster
Theta Hicks
Robert Irwin

Joel Jackson

Barry Jones

Sara Neal

Sharon Nedlo
Karen Neeley
Richard Perryman
Betty Reese

Bo Rester

Rachel Rosas-Miner
Blake Scharlach
Terry Scoggin

Assistant Vice Presidents

Amy Adkins
Wendi Armstrong
Connie Kay Brooks
Toni Brooks

Eloy Chapa
Sondra Cunningham
Chad Elledge
Jason Frazier
Dureen Fuller
Dianna Griffin
Susy Guest
Lynda Hager
Jannie Husbands
Vince Julian
Sandy Majors
Brad Moore
Merideth Parker
Debbie Rose

Lou Ann Tovar
Deann Vaught
Suzanpe Walker
Brenda Wright

Mortgage Officers
Nicole Raley

Deana Spataro
Assistant Trust Officer
Gail Blair

Senior Security Officer
Brantley Foster
Assistant Cashiers
Gena Gage

RitaLee

Connie Logue

Patti Shaw

Senior Administrative Officers

Kim Ragsdale
Kim Shumate
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Administrative Officers
Tamara Birch
Ronda Burns
Sally Cunningham
Michelle Ferguson
Sherry Jennings
Vicki Marsh
Melissa Merchant
Becky Thompson
Karen Wall

Mollie Wilhams
Rita Zapata

Banking Officers
Bry Baker

Martha Bone

Amy Hammonds
Linda Kump
Melissa Robertson
Rena Rodgers
Melissa Whitaker
Sherri Wilson
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Arthur B. Scharlach, Jr.
Chairman of the Board & CEO, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
Chairman of the Board, CEO & Director Guaranty Bond Bank

Tyson T. Abston
President, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc
President & Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Clifton A. Payne
Senior Vice President & CFO, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
Executive Vice President, CFO & Director Guaranty Bond Bank

Kirk L. Lee
Senior Vice President, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
Executive Vice President & Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Johnny Conroy
Vice President, Conroy Tractor, Inc.
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

OFFICERS:

Jonice Crane
Retired Bank Executive
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

C. A. Hinton, Sr.
Chairman of the Board, Hinton Production Co.
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Carl Johnson, Jr.
President & Owner, Baker & Johnson, PC
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Weldon Miller
President, Everybody’s Furniture Company
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Bill Priefert
President, Priefert Manufacturing Company, Inc.
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Gene Watson
Real Estate Investments
Director, Guaranty Bond Bank

Arthur B. Scharlach, Jr., Chairman of the Board & CEO
Tyson T. Abston, President
Clifton A. Payne, CPA, Senior Vice President & CFO
Kirk L. Lee, Senior Vice President
Mary Ann Munsinger, Secretary
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Certified Public Accountants

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
Mount Pleasant, Texas

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of eamings, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in

conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
%4%47 / Aoy | L

Dallas, Texas
January 21, 2005

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is an independent member firm of
RSM International, an affiliation of independent accounting
and consuiting firms.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in thousands, except par value)

December 31,
2004 2003
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 14,949 $ 20,630
Federal funds sold 9,075 -
Interest-bearing deposits 210 186

Total cash and cash equivalents 24,234 20,816
Interest-bearing time deposits 12,823 6,776
Securities available-for-sale 103,751 99,614
Loans held for sale 1,749 1244
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,154 and $3,906 371,431 360,364
Premises and equipment, net 13,471 13,183
Other real estate 692 743
Accrued interest receivable 2,794 2,638
Goodwill 2,338 2,338
Cash surrender value of life insurance 5,260 6,152
Other assets 3,423 3,210

Total assets $ 541,966 $ 517,078

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Deposits

Noninterest-bearing $ 82,302 $ 72,202

Interest-bearing 351,441 335,645

Total deposits 433,743 407,847
Accrued interest and other liabilities 4,736 5,071
Federal funds purchased - 7.295
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 54,553 50,417
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310 10,000

Total liabilities $ 503,342 § 480,630

Commitments and Contingencies - -
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $5.00 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized,

no shares issued - -
Common stock, $1.00 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized,

3,252,016 shares issued 3,252 $ 3,252
Additional paid-in capital 12,882 12,801
Retained earnings 26,405 23,912
Treasury stock 339,339 and 330,088 shares at cost (4,179) (3,981)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 264 ‘ 464

Total shareholders’ equity 38,624 36,448

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 541,966 $ 517,078

Refer to the Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete set of consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Interestincome

Loans, including fees
Securities
Taxable
Nontaxable

Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits

Total interest income
Interest expense

Deposits

FHLB advances and federal funds purchased

Junior subordinated debentures
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses

Noninterest income
Service charges
Net realized gain on securities transactions
Other operating income
Total noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Employee compensation and benefits
Occupancy expenses
Other operating expenses
Total noninterest expenses
Earnings before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Current

Deferred
Total provision income tax

Net Earnings

Basic earnings per commeon share

Diluted earnings per common share

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
$ 22,990 $ 23473 $ 24,119
3,559 3919 4,470
210 58 159
270 114 207
27,029 27,564 28955
6,072 7240 9,837
2,061 2,001 1,639
1,004 1,001 79
9,137 10242 12272
17,892 17322 16,683
930 1,075 1,260
16,962 16247 15423
3,036 2,869 2,957
120 188 380
1,600 1,880 1,719
4,756 4937 5,056
9,326 9371 8711
2,260 2019 1,992
4,897 4,447 3,989
16,483 15837 14,692
5,235 5347 5,787
1,403 961 1,065
172 542 5
1,575 1,503 1410

$ 3,660 $ 3,844 S 4377
$ 125 $ 132 $ 146

$ 1.24 5 130 § 145

Refer to the Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete set of consolidated financial statements.
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Arthur B. Scharlach, Jr. Tyson T. Abston

Chairman of the Board & CEO President, Guaranty Bond Bank
Guaranty Bond Bank President & Director,
Chairman of the Board, CEO & Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

Kirk L. Lee Martin Bell

Executive Vice President, Guaranty Bond Bank Executive Vice President
Senior Vice President & Director, Guaranty Bond Bank
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Mt. Pleasant, Texas

Johnny Conroy Jonice Crane

Vice President, Conroy Tractor Company Retired Bank Executive
Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

Mount Pleasant, Texas Mount Pleasant, Texas

Chris Elliott

President, Elliott Motors
Mount Pleasant, Texas
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Clifton A. Payne

Executive Vice President & CFO
Guaranty Bond Bank
Senior Vice President, CFO & Director
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

Joe L. Buford

Redfearn-Buford Insurance
Mount Pleasant, Texas

Brad Drake

Vice President, Richard Drake
Construction Company, LP
Paris, Texas

David Glass

President, David Glass
Investments, Inc.
Paris, Texas




C. A. Hinton, Sr. Carl Johnson, Jr. Brian K. Jones

Chairman of the Board, Hinton Production Co. Partner & Owner, Baker & Johnson, PC Investment Representative
Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Mount Pleasant, Texas
Mount Pleasant, Texas Mount Pleasant, Texas

TBHI? IC()elty Brian Lee Weldon Miller
roker-Owner, ; S i ’ i
Century 21 Hometown Real Estate Owanet, E1 Chico Restautant Presxd_ent, O pamiire Company
Sulphur Spri T Mount Pleasant, Texas Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
ulphur Springs, Texas Mount Pleasant, Texas

Bill Priefert Joe Redfearn Dr. Tim Reynolds, M. D.
President, President, President, E-Med, Inc.
Priefert Manufacturing Co. Redfearn Real Estate Texarkana, Texas
Director, Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Mount Pleasant, Texas

Mount Pleasant, Texas

Gene Watson

Real Estate Investments
Director,

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.
Sulphur Springs, Texas
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IN LOVING
MEMORY OF
BILL G. JONES

{ Bill G. Jones, former Chairman of the Board, died{{{ =
* May 23, 2004.{There is no doubt that Guaranty would
not be the company it is today withouthis leadership,
guidance, and business acumen. His presence will
be missed, but the wisdom, values and business
fundamentals he imparted to all of us will be his

. T

long-lasting legacy. TR .
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IN LOVING MEMORY OF
BART SCHARLACH
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Stock Market Price Range and Dividends on Common Stock for 2004

(In dollars.)

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

High $ 22.10 $ 20.65 $ 24.00 $ 2283

Low 20.00 19.00 17.05 20.44

Dividends -- 0.20 -- 0.20
Stock SEC REPORTS AND ADDITIONAL Mount Pleasant

ListinG INFORMATION Guaranty Bond Bank - Downtown

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. common

stock trades on the Nasdaq Stock
Market under the symbol GNTY.

TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Trust Company
Suite 800

350 Indiana Street

Golden, Colorado 80401

Shareholders who have questions
regarding their ownership of
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. stock
may contact their regular
stockbroker or the Transfer Agent
at (303) 262-0600.

DivipEnD CALENDAR

Dividends on Guaranty Bancshares,
Inc. common stock are payable, if
paid, semi-annually in June and
December.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
One Galleria Tower, Suite #800
13355 Noel Road

Dallas, Texas 75240

MARKET MAKERS

The following investment brokerage
houses make a market in Guaranty
Banchares, Inc. stock:

Hoefer & Arnett, Inc.
Stifel Nicolaus & Co.
Knight Securities L.P.
Sandler O’Neill & Partners

16

Analysts, investors and others seeking copies
of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.’s Annual
Report (Form 10-K) and Quarterly Report
(Form 10-Q) to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or additional

financial information, contact:

Clifton A. Payne, CPA

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

P. O. Box 1158

Mount Pleasant, Texas 75456-1158
(903) 572-9881

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of Guaranty
Bancshares, Inc. will be held at its corporate
headquarters on Tuesday, April 19, 2005.

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
|

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

100 W. Arkansas

P. O.Box 1158

Mount Pleasant, Texas 75456-1158

BANKING CENTER QFFICES

Bogata
Guaranty Bond Bank
110 Halesboro St.
Bogata, Texas 75417
(903) 632-5269

Commerce
Guaranty Bond Bank
1108 Park St.
Commerce, Texas 75429
(903) 886-2274

Fort Stockton
Guaranty Bond Bank
#1 Spring Drive
Fort Stockton, Texas 79735
(432)336-7134

100 W. Arkansas
Mount Pleasant, Texas 75455
(903) 572-9881
Mount Pleasant - South
Guaranty Bond Bank - South
2317 S. Jefferson
Mount Pleasant, Texas 75455
(903) 575-2323
Mount Vernon
Guaranty Bond Bank
304 South Hwy 37
Mt. Vernon, TX 75457
(903)537-3990
Paris
Guaranty Bond Bank
3250 Lamar Ave.
Paris, Texas 75460
(903) 784-4100
Pittsburg
Guaranty Bond Bank
116 S. Greer Blvd.
Pittsburg, Texas 75686
(903) 855-0007
Sulphur Springs
Guaranty Bond Bank
919 Gilmer St.
Sulphur Springs, Texas 75482
(903) 885-3193
Talco
Guaranty Bond Bank
104 Broad St.
Talco, Texas 75487
(903) 379-3611
Texarkana
Guaranty Bond Bank
2202 St. Michael Dr.
Texarkana, Texas 75503
(903) 792-8600
Texarkana - West
Guaranty Bond Bank
5800 West 7th Street
Texarkana, Texas 75501
(903) 838-5800
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One) .
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004

OR
[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from  to

Commission File Number 0-23113

GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Texas . 75-1656431
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S.Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
100 West Arkansas _ ' 75455
Mount Pleasant, Texas (Zip Code)

" (Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(903) 572-9881

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act; None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock, par value
$1.00 per share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes _X No __

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes No X

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated
by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

As of February 18, 2005, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was 2,912,677. As of June 30, 2004, the
last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the aggregate market value of the shares of
Common Stock held by non-affiliates, based on the closing price of the Common Stock on the Nasdag National Market System
on such date, was approximately $25.3 million. -

Documents Incorporated by Reference:

Portions of the Company’s Proxy Statement relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed
within 120 days after December 31, 2004, are incorporated by reference into Part III, Items 10-14 of this Form 10-K.



PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated as a business corporation under the laws of
the State of Texas in 1980 to serve as a holding company for Guaranty Bond Bank, formally known as Guaranty
Bank, (the “Bank™), which was chartered in 1913, and for Talco State Bank, which was chartered in 1912 and
merged into the Bank in 1997. The Company's headquarters are located at 100 West Arkansas, Mount Pleasant,
Texas 75453, and its telephone number is (903} 572-9881.

The Company has grown through a combination of internal growth, the acquisition of community banks
and the opening of new community banking offices. In 1992, the Company established its Deport, Texas location
by acquiring certain. assets and liabilities of the First National Bank of Deport (the “Deport Bank™). The Deport
Bank also had a branch in Paris, Texas, which the Company acquired. To enhance its expansion into the Paris
community, in 1994 the Company constructed a new facility to serve as its Paris location. In 2001, the Paris facility
was expanded from approximately 5,400 square feet to approximately 9,700 square feet, again to service the
expanded customer base. In 1993, the Company purchased a commercial bank in Bogata, Texas and in 1996 opened
a second retail-service banking facility in Mount Pleasant. In 1997, the Company merged Talco State Bank into the
Bank and opened a full-service location in Texarkana. In 1998, the Company completed a new facility in Texarkana
to enhance its expansion in the Texarkana market. Texarkana is the center of a trade area encompassing
approximately 130,000 people. Management of the Company continues to believe that this trade area provides
opportunity for strong growth in loans and deposits. Texas Highway 59 (scheduled to become Interstate 69), which
serves as the primary “NAFTA Highway” linking the interior United States and Mexico, is 2 main artery to
Texarkana. The increased traffic along this NAFTA Highway is expected to enhance economic activity in this area
and create more opportunities for growth.

In 1999, the Company opened a full-service location in Pittsburg, Texas, a community of approximately
4,500 people located 12 miles from Mount Pleasant. Also in 1999, the Company acquired the First American
Financial Corporation, with banking locations in Sulphur Springs and Commerce, Texas and a wholly owned
mortgage company. In 2000, the operations of the mortgage subsidiary, which were being continued by the
Company under the name Guaranty Mortgage Company, were merged into the Bank. Also in August 2000, the
Company opened a loan production office in Fort Stockton, Texas, located in the western portion of Texas, which
became a full-service bank in December of 2000. As of December 31, 2004, product offerings at the Fort Stockton
location are limited to loans and time deposits. In August of 2004, the Company closed its Deport, Texas location.
All Deport customers were transferred to either the Paris location, 12 miles to the north, or the Bogata location, 10
miles to the south, Management believes that the Company retained 95% of the Deport customer base. In August
of 2004, the Company opened its second retail-service banking facility in Texarkana. In November 2004, the
Company opened a full-service location in Mount Vernon, Texas, a community of approximately 3,000 people
located 15 miles west of Mount Pleasant. Both of the new locations opened in 2004 are operating out of temporary
facilities with plans to complete permanent facilities in 2005.

The Company has developed a community-banking network, with most of its offices located in separate
communities. Lending and investment activities are funded from a strong core deposit base consisting of
approximately 40,000 deposit accounts as of December 31, 2004. Each of the Company's offices has the authority
and. flexibility to make pricing decisions within overall ranges developed by the Company as a form of quality
control. Management of the Company believes that its responsiveness to local customers and ability to adjust
deposit rates and price loans at each location gives it a distinct competitive advantage. Employees are committed to
personal service and developing long-term customer relationships, and adequate staffing is provided at each location
to ensure that customers’ needs are well addressed. The Company provides economic incentives to its employees to
develop additional business for the Company and to cross-sell additional products and services to existing
customers.




.-The Bank owns interests in-five-entities which complement the Company’s business, the first three of
which are wholly-owned: (i) Guaranty Leasing Company (“Guaranty Leasing™), which finances equipment leases
and has engaged in certain leveraged lease transactions; (i1} Guaranty Company, which owns real estate for future
Bank expansion; (iii) GB Com, Inc., a nominee company; (iv) BSC Securities, L.C. (“BSC”), which provides
brokerage services; and, (v) Independent Bank Services, L.C. (“IBS”), which performs compliance, loan review,
internal audit and EDP audit functions. These entities are accounted for in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting and are included in other assets on the balance sheet.

Business

The Company's guiding strategy is to increase shareholder value by providing customers with
individualized, responsive, quality service and to augment its existing market share. The Company’s main objective
is to increase loans and deposits through additional expansion opportunities in Texas, while stressing efficiency and
maximizing profitabil 1ry In furtherance of this objective, the Company has employed the following operating
strategies:

Focus On Community Banking. The Company has developed a reputation of being a premier provider of
financial services to small and medium-sized businesses, professionals and individuals in Northeast Texas.
Management believes the Company's reputation for providing personal, professional and dependable service is well
established in communities located in this area. Each of the Company's full-service branch locations is’administered
by a local President who has knowledge of the particular community and lending expertise in the specific industries
found in the community, whether it is agriculture, manufacturing and commerce or professional services. Decisions
regarding loans and deposits are made- at each location, enabling the Company to provide timely decisions on
lending issues. .

Continue Controlled Core Growth. The Company has increased its deposit market share in each of the
communities in which it maintains-a full-service banking center. In 2004, total deposits grew $25.9 million, or
6.3%. Growth was experienced in non-interest bearing checking accounts of $10.1 million, or 14%, interest-bearing
checking accounts of $5.7 million, or 12.7%, and money market accounts of $8.2 million, or 13.8%. The larger
growth markets were Mount Pleasant, Paris, Texarkana and Commerce. In its principal location of Mount Pleasant,
the Company’s market share of financial institution deposits, based on the FDIC Deposit Market Share data as of
June 30, 2004, was approximately 40.8%, the largest single financial institution in that market. This same data
showed gains in market share of other markets with total market share for the Commerce location at 5.1%, Pittsburg
at 9.4%, Sulphur Springs at 14.9%, Paris at 11.3%, and Bogata at 13.5%. The Company is well known in its
geographic area as a result of its longevity and reputation for service. The Company continues to look for additional
expansion opportunities, either through acquisitions of existing financial institutions or by establishing de novo
offices. The Company intends to consider various strategic acquisitions of banks, banking assets or financial service
entities related to banking in those areas that' management believes would complement and help grow the Company's
existing business as well as servicing its existing customer base.

Enhance Technology. The Company has embraced technological change as a way to remain competitive,
manage operational costs associated with growth and offer superior products to its customers. Recent technological
additions include mailroom automation, Voice-Over-IP telephony, and Internet Banking enhancements. This adds
to our existing electronic bill and note payment, note and document imaging, electronic report management, remote
proof capture, electronic statement delivery, and an automated voice response system. Currently, the Company is
evaluating several additional enhancements that will improve its ability to deliver information internally to improve
productivity and externally to provide convenience and timeliness to its growing customer base. Such
enhancements include consolidation of the various accounting systems the Bank uses, implementation of a new
“Check 217 compatible teller system and electronic check/image presentment. The Company has made 51gmﬁcant
investments in technology.

Offer Full Range of Services and Products. The Company recognizes its competition is not solely banks,
but brokerage houses, insurance companies, credit unions and various other financial service firms, and that in order
to thrive it must be competitive in the products that it offers. The Company offers a full range of commercial loan
products, including term loans, lines of credit, fixed asset loans, real estate loans and working capital loans. The
Company also offers consumers a full range of personal loan products including automobile loans, home
improvement loans, consumer loans and mortgage loans. In addition to loan products, the Company has a wide




variety of deposit products, including a Premier Money Market Account that pays a rate competitive with most
brokerage investment accounts. .This product, coupled with certificates of deposit, NOW accounts, savings
accounts, Internet banking with on-line-bill pay, free checking, debit cards, ATM convenience and overdraft
protection, gives the customer a full complement of deposit products at competltlve rates.

Expand Revenue Sources. In order to provide service to its customers and to augment revenues, the
Company offers brokerage services through BSC, a full-service brokerage company. BSC offers a complete array
of investment options including stocks, bonds, mutual funds, financial and retirement planning, tax advantaged
investments and asset allocations. These products are not FDIC insured. BSC offers securities through Southwest
Securities, a Texas-based independent clearing firm and is licensed and regulated through the National Association
of Securities Dealers, the Securities and Exchange Commission and various state and federal banking authorities.
The Company's Trust Department-offers complete trust services, including estate administration and custody, trust
and asset management services. Management believes that an aging affluent population will foster an increase in
the need for professional estate administration services. The maturing of the baby boomer generation is creating a
market for asset management services. The Trust Department is in a unique position since there is little competition
for trust services in the Company's markets. Because of the Company's strong presence in its markets, management
believes that banking relationships can be leveraged into growth for the Trust Department. In 2004, Trust
Department assets under management increased $16.9 million, or 34.5%. Management expects that trust assets and
corresponding management fees will grow as a result of expanding estate administration, traditional trust services,
asset management services and custodial services in the Company's markets.

Improve Operating Efficiencies: In order to control overhead expenses, the Company seeks to provide a
full range of services as efficiently as possible. Through BSC, the Company is able to provide its customers with
full brokerage services without having to carry the entire cost itself due to a shared cost agreement with other banks.
Similarly, the Company enjoys the compliance and loan review functions provided by IBS on a shared cost basis
with a group of other banks participating in, this arrangement. The Company. has spent the last ten years and
considerable revenue expanding its market and improving the delivery of its financial products, which has resuited
in a higher than desired efficiency ratio. Beginning with the acquisition of the Deport Bank in 1992, the Company
has added twelve locations and closed one. As a result, the Company has not yet achieved the desired economies of
scale, but with its growth rate, those economies are beginning to be realized and the efficiency ratio is expected to
show improving trends in the future. Management believes the Company has the support staff and related fixed
asset investments necessary to accommodate. additional growth and realize economies of scale.

Training. An effective training- program is critical to the Company’s success. The rapid growth
experienced by the Company, changes. in technology, changes in bank regulations, and staff development all
contribute to the need for a strong training program. To this end, the- Human Resource Manager has developed a
formalized training program that focuses on technology, compliance, and operations.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, and the profitability of the Company depends principally on its
ability to compete in the market areas in which its banking operations are located. The Company competes with
other commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, finance companies, mutual
funds, insurance companies, brokerage and investment banking firms, asset-based non-bank lenders and certain
other non-financial entities, including retail stores which may maintain their own credit programs and certain
governmental organizations which may offer more favorable financing than the Company. The Company has been
able to compete effectively with other financial institutions by emphasizing customer service, technology and local
office decision-making, by establishing long-term customer relationships and building customer loyalty, and by
providing products and services designed to address the specific needs of its.customers. Competition from both
financial and non-financial institutions is expected to continue.




Leveraged Lease Transactions

In a series of transactions in 1992, 1994 and 1995, Guaranty Leasing acquired limited partnership interests
in three different partnerships (collectively, the "Partnerships” or individually, the "1992 Partnership”, “1994
Partnership” and 1995 Partnership”, respectively). engaged in the equipment leasing business. The investments
were structured by TransCap1tal Corporatlon ("TransCapltal") ‘through various sub51d1ar1es and controlled
partnerships.

Generally, in each of the transactions, a partnership became the lessee of equipment from an equipment
owner (pursuant to a sale and leaseback transaction) and the sublessor of the equipment to the equipment user. Each
partnership receives note payments from the equipment owner under a purchase money note given to purchase the
equipment from that partnership. The partnership makes-lease payments to the equipment owner pursuant to the
master lease of the equipment.. In-most instances, payments under the purchase money note equal lease payments
under the master lease. Rental payments from the equipment used under these equipment subleases were sold in
advance subject to existing liens for purchase of the equipment.

The partnership incurs a tax-loss while the master lease/sublease structure is in place, primarily because
deductions for rentals paid under the master lease exceed taxable interest income under the purchase money note.
Consequently, Guaranty Leasing has reported tax losses as a result of its investments in the Partnerships, which were
deductible by the Company. In November 1998, Guaranty Leasing was informed by the Internal Revenue Service
(the "Service") that it has taken the position that certain losses taken by the “1992 Partnership” during 1994, 1995
and 1996 of $302,000, $410,000 and $447,000, respectively, would be.disallowed. In October 2001, Guaranty
Leasing was informed by the Service that it has taken the position that certain losses taken by that Partnership during
1997 of $487,000 would also be disallowed. In September 2002, the Company received from the Service a Notice
of Final Partnership Administrative Adjustment disallowing these deductions. Based upon the advice of tounsel, the
Company believes that it has correctly reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it has obtained
appropriate legal, accounting and appraisal opinions and authority to support its positions. The Company recorded
and expensed the tax affect of the disallowed deductions in 2002.

In February 2003, the Company filed a petition to begin the process to liitigate the matter in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas the ("Texas Court"). In October 2003, the Government filed a
Motion to Transfer Venue from the “Texas Court” to the United States District Court for the Eastern District for
Virginia, (the "Virginia Court") but in the alternative, claimed the "Texas Court" had no jurisdiction to hear the case.
In November 2003, the Government filed a Motion to Stay Proceedings. In December 2003, and still in effect, the
“Texas Court” issued an Order to Stay Proceedmgs pending the Court’s ruling on the Government’s Motion to
‘Transfer Venue.

. * In June 2004 in a similar case, of which the Company is not a party, the Government filed a brief with the
. United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“the Federal Circuit”) essentially agreeing and concluding
that Section 6226(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code is a venue provision and not a jurisdictional provision. This is
the same position of the Company in its pending litigation against the Government in the "Texas Court". In July
2004, the “Texas Court” granted a Motion to Continue Hearing on the United States Opposed Motion to Transfer
Venue. The “Texas Court” and the Company are currently awaiting a ruhng from the “Federal Circuit” on the
jurisdictional v. venue issue.

As of December 31, 2004, the “Federal Circuit” has not made a definitive ruling on the issue of whether
Section 6226(a)(2) is jurisdictional or whether the statute is merely a venue provision. It is anticipated by legal
counsel that given the Government’s change of position, the "Federal Circuit" will determine that Section 6226(a)(2)
addresses the issue of venue and not jurisdiction; but a definitive-answer must await a ruling from the "Federal
Circuit". Oral arguments were presented to the "Federal Circuit" in October 2004 and it is anticipated that a ruling
will be issued within the near future.

In March 2004, the Company was informed by the Service that it had taken the position that certain losses
taken by the “1994 Partnership” during the tax years of 1994 through 1999 would be disallowed and tax owed
totaling $438,579 would be assessed. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has not received a Notice of Final
Partnership Administrative Adjustment on this Partnership. Based upon the advice of counsel, the Company



believes that it has correctly reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it has obtained appropriate legal,
accounting and appraisal opinions and authority to support its positions.

In addition to the ongoing litigation regarding these Partnerships, the Service is currently in the process of
examining the tax deductions taken for the “1995. Partnership”. No determination has been made regarding the
disallowance of similar deductions taken by this Partnership. Should the Service ultimately disallow the related tax
deductions taken during the remaining years of the “1992 Partnership™ as well as the other two Partnerships, the
Company will be required to recognize an additional maximum tax liability of approximately $3.9 million plus
possible penalty and interest. The Company is actively contesting the position of the Service in connection with this
matter, and has taken and will continue to take, appropriate steps necessary to protect its legal position. Any ﬁnal
determination with respect to the Partnershlps will be bmdmg on the Company. \

During the year ended December 31, 2000, Guaranty Leasing acquired for approximately $2.8 million; a
2.5% ownership interest in an-Aircraft Finance Trust (“AFT”), a special purpose business trust formed to acquire,
finance, refinance, own, lease, sublease, sell and maintain aircraft. AFT was created by General Electric Capital
Corporation, and is a financing transaction through which airlines lease aircraft. AFT is a business trust formed in
1999 under the laws of the state of Delaware, and it leases aircraft to airlines around the world. The senior notes
issued to AFT are rated AA by Standard and-Poors and the notes are secured by the cash flow from the alrcraft
leases. The notes mature in 2024, ‘

Prior to 2004, on belief that the Company’s investment in AFT was impaired by declines in air travel, the
uncertainly surrounding the airline industry, the limited marketability of the AFT investment, and general economic
conditions, impairment charges of approximately $1.6 million were recorded and the carrying amount of the
investment was reduced to $1.4 million. - During 2004, an' impairment charge of $120,000 was recorded. The book
value of the AFT investment at December 31 2004 was $1.3 million.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had 224 full-time employees and 21 part-time employees, 87 of
whom were officers of the Bank. . All employees are non-union employees. The Company considers its relations
with employees to be excellent.

Superv1s10n and Regulation -

The supervision and regulation of bank holding companies and the1r subsidiaries is intended primarily for
the protection of depositors, the deposit insurance funds of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") and
the banking system as a whole, and not for the protection of the bank holding company shareholders or creditors.
The banking agencies have broad enforcement power over bank holding companies and banks including the power
to impose substantial fines and other penalties for violations of laws and regulations.

The following descfiptien summarizes some of the laws to which the Company and the Bank are subject.
References in the following description to applicable statutes and regulations are brief summaries of these statutes
and regulations, do not purport to be complete, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and
regulations.

The Company. The Company is a bank holding company registered under the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956,.as amended (the "BHC Act”), and it is subject to supervision, regulation and examination by the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Federal Reserve"). The BHC Act and other federal laws subject bank
holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities in which they may engage, and to a range of
supervisory requirements and activities, including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of laws and
regulations.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends, Source of Strength. 1t is the policy of the Federal Reserve that bank
holding companies should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of income available over the past year and
only .if prospective eamings retention is consistent with the organization's expected future needs and financial
condition. The policy provides that bank holding companies should not maintain a level of cash dividends that




¢ standards for verifying customer identification at account opening;

e rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators, and law enforcement entities
in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering; . :

e reports by non-financial trades and businesses filed with the Treasury Department s Fmanc1al
Crimes Enforcement Network for transactions exceeding $]O 000; and,

. filing of suspicious activities reports regarding: securities by brokers and dealers if they believe a
customer may be v101at1ng U.S. laws and regulatlons

Under the Financial-Services M'odernization Act, federal banking regulators adopted rules that limit the
ability of banks and other financial institutions to disclose non-publiic information about consumers to nonaffiliated
third parties. Pursuant to the rules, financial institutions must provide:

e initial notices to customers about their privacy policies, describing the conditions under which
they may disclose non-public personal information to nonaffiliated third parties and affiliates;

e annual notices of their privacy policies to current customers; and, -

¢ areasonable method for customers to “opt out” of disclosures to nonaffiliated third parties.

These privacy provisions will affect how customer information is transmitted through diversified financial
companies and conveyed to outside vendors. Management believes the privacy positions have not had a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Safe and Sound Banking Practices. Bank holding companies are not permitted to engage in unsafe and
unsound banking practices. The Federal Reserve's Regulation Y, for example, generally requires a holding company
to give the Federal Reserve prior notice of any redemption.or repurchase of its own equity securities, if the
consideration to be paid, together with the consideration paid for any repurchases or redemptions in the preceding
year, is equal to 10% or more.of the company's consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve may oppose the
transaction if it believes that the transaction would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or would violate any law
or regulation. Depending upon the circumstances, the Federal Reserve could take the position that paying a dividend
would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice.

" The Federal Reserve has broad - authorlty to prohibit actlvmes ‘of bank holding companies and their nion-
banking subsidiaries which represent unsafe and unsound banking practices or which constitute violations of laws or
regulations, and can assess civil money penalties for certain activities conducted on a knowing and reckless basis, if
those activities caused a substant1a1 loss toa depository institution. The penalties can be as high as $1.0 million for
each day the activity continues.

Anti-T yinér Restrictions. Bank holding companies and their affiliates are prohibited from tying the provision
of certain services, such as extensions of credit, to other services offered by a holding company or its affiliates.

. Capital Adequacy Requirements. The Federal Reserve has adopted a system using risk-based capital
guidelines to evaluate the capital adequacy of bank holding companies. Under the guidelines, specific categories of
assets are assigned different risk weights, based generally on the perceived credit risk of the asset. These risk
weights are multiplied by corresponding asset balancés to determine a "risk-weighted" asset base. The guidelines
require a minimum 'total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% (of which at least 4.0% is required to consist of Tier 1
capital elements). Total capital is the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. As of December 31, 2004, the Company's
ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets was 12.52% and its ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted
assets was 13.65%.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve uses a leverage ratio as an additional
tool to evaluate the capital adequacy of bank holding companies. The leverage ratio is a company's Tier | capital




divided by its average total consolidated assets. Certain highly rated bank holding companies may maintain a
minimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank holding companies may be required to maintain a leverage ratio of
up to 200 basis points above the regulatory minimum. As of December 31, 2004, the Company's leverage ratio was
8.73%. :

The federal banking agencies' risk-based and leverage ratios are minimum supervisory ratios generally
applicable to banking organizations that meet certain specified criteria, assuming that they have the highest
regulatory rating. Banking organizations not meeting these criteria are expected to operate with capital positions
well above the minimum ratios. The federal bank regulatory agencies may set capital requirements for a particular
banking organization that are higher than the minimum ratios when circumstances warrant. Federal Reserve
guidelines also provide that banking organizations experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be
expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels, w1thout
significant reliance on mtanglble assets.

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subsidiaries. Bank regulators are required to take "prompt
corrective action” to resolve problems. associated with insured depository institutions whose capital declines below
certain levels. In the event an institution becomes "undercapitalized," it must submit a capital restoration plan. The
capital restoration plan will not be accepted:by the regulators unless each company having control of the
undercapitalized institution guarantees the subsidiary’s compliance with the capital restoration plan up to a certain
specified amount. Any such guarantee from a deposnory institution's holding company is entitled to a priority of
payment in bankruptcy. .

The aggregate liability of the holding company of an undercapitalized bank is limited to the lesser of 5% of
the institution's assets at the time it became undercapitalized or the amount necessary to cause the institution to be
"adequately capitalized." The bank regulators have greater power in situations where an institution becomes
"significantly” or "critically” undercapitalized or fails to submit a capital restoration plan. For example, a bank
holding company controlling such an institution can be required to obtain prior Federal Reserve approval of
proposed dividends, or might be requlred to consent to a consolidation or to divest the troubled institution or other
affiliates.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies. The BHC Act requires every bank holding company to obtain
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before it may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank, or
ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such acquisition it would own or control, directly or
indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank. In approving bank acquisitions by bank holding
companies, the Federal Reserve is required to consider the financial and managerial resources and future prospects
of the bank holding company and the banks concemed the convenience and needs of the communities to be served,
and various competitive factors.

Control Acquisitions. The Change in Bank Control Act prohibits a person or group of persons from
acquiring "control" of a bank holding company unless the Federal Reserve has been notified and has not objected to
the transaction. Under a rebuttable presumption established by the Federal Reserve, the acquisition of 10% or more
of a class of voting stock of a bank holding company with a class of securities registered under Section 12 of the
Exchange Act, such as the Company, would, under the mrcumstances set forth in the presumption, constitute
acquisition of control of the Company.

In addition, any company is required to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve under the BHC Act
before acquiring 25% (5% in the case of an acquirer that is a bank holding company) or more. of the outstanding
Common Stock of the Company, or otherwise obtaining control or a "controlling influence" over the Company.

The Bank. The Bank is a Texas-chartered barking association, the deposits of which are insured by the
Bank Insurance Fund ("BIF") of the FDIC. The Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve System; therefore, the
Bank is subject to supervision and regulation by the FDIC and the Texas Department of Banking ("TDB"). Such
supervision and regulation subjects the Bank to special réstrictions, requirements, potential enforcement actions and
periodic examination by the FDIC and the TDB. Because the Federal Reserve regulates the bank holding company
parent of the Bank, the Federal Reserve also has supervisory authority, which directly affects the Bank.



Equivalence to National Bank Powers. The Texas Constitution, as amended in 1986, provides that a Texas-
chartered bank has the same rights and privileges that are or may be granted to national banks domiciled in Texas.
To the extent that the Texas laws and regulations may have allowed state-chartered banks to engage in a broader
range of activities than national banks, the FDICIA has operated to limit this authority. FDICIA provides that no
state bank or subsidiary thereof may engage as principal in any activity not permitted for national banks, unless the
institution complies with applicable capital requirements and the FDIC determines that the activity poses no
significant risk to the insurance fund. In general, statutory restrictions’ on the activities of banks are aimed at
protecting the safety and soundness of depository institutions.

Financial Modernization. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, a national bank may establish a financial
subsidiary and engage, subject to limitations on investment, in activities that are financial in nature, other than
insurance underwriting as principal, insurance company portfolio investment, real estate development, real estate
investment and annuity issuance. To do so, a bank must be well capitalized, well managed and have a CRA rating
of satisfactory or better. Subsidiary banks of a bank holding company or national banks with financial subsidiaries
must remain well capitalized and well managed in order to continue to engage in activities that are financial in
nature without regulatory actions or restrictions, which could include divestiture of the financial subsidiary or
subsidiaries. In addition, a bank holding company or a bank may not acquire a company that is engaged in activities
that are financial in nature unless each of the subsidiary banks of the bank holding company or the bank has a CRA
rating of satisfactory or better.

Although the powers of state-chartered banks with respect to engaging in financial activities are not
specifically addressed in the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, state banks, such as the Bank, will have the same if not
greater powers as national banks through the parity provision contained in the Texas Constitution.

. Branching. Texas law provides that a Texas-chartered bank can establish a branch anywhere in Texas
provided that the branch is approved in advance by the TDB. The branch must also be approved by the FDIC,
which considers a number of factors, including financial history, capital adequacy, earnings prospects, character of
management, needs of the community and consistency with corporate powers.

Restrictions on Transactions With Affiliates and Insiders. Transactions between the Bank and its
nonbanking affiliates, including the Company, are subject to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. In general,
Section 23A imposes limits on the amount of such transactions, and also requires certain levels of collateral for
loans to affiliated parties. It also limits the amount of advances to third parties, which are collateralized by the
securities or obligations of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally requires
that certain transactions between the Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantially the same, or at least as
favorable to the Bank, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with or involving other
nonaffiliated persons. -The Federal Reserve has also issued Regulation W which codifies prior regulations under
Section 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and interpretive guidance with respect to affiliate transactions.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related interests
(collectively referred to herein as "insiders") contained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation O apply to all
insured institutions and their subsidiaries and holding companies. These restrictions include limits on loans to one
borrower and conditions that must be met before such a loan can be made. There is also an aggregate limitation on
all loans to insiders and their related interests. These loans cannot exceed the institution's total unimpaired capital
and surplus, and the FDIC may determine that a lesser amount is appropriate. liisiders are subject to enforcement
actions for knowingly accepting loans in violation of applicable restrictions.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank Dividends and Assets. Dividends paid by the Bank have
provided a substantial part of the Company's operating funds and it is anticipated that dividends paid by the Bank to
the Company will continue to be the Company's principal source of operating funds. Capital adequacy requirements
serve to limit the amount of dividends that may be paid by the Bank. Under federal law, the Bank cannot pay a
dividend if, after paying the dividend, the Bank will be "undercapitalized.” The FDIC may declare a dividend
payment to be unsafe and unsound even though the Bank would continue to meet its capital requirements after the
dividend. :




Because the Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaties, its right to participate in
the distribution of assets of any subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation or reorganization will be subject to the
prior claims of the subsidiary's creditors. In the event of a liquidation or other resolution of an insured depository
institution, the claims of depositors and other general or subordinated creditors are entitled to a priority of payment
over the claims of holders of any obligation of the institution to its shareholders, including any depository institution
holding company (such as the Company) or any shareholder or creditor thereof.

Examinations. The FDIC periodically examines and evaluates insured banks. Based upon such an
evaluation, the FDIC may revalue the assets of the institution and require that it establish specific reserves to
compensate for the difference between the FDIC-determined value and the book value of such assets. The TDB also
conducts examinations of state banks but may accept the results of a federal exammatlon in lieu of conducting an
independent examination.

Audit Reports. Insured institutions with. total assets of $500 million or more must submit annual audit
reports prepared by independent auditors to federal and state regulators. In some instances, the audit report of the
institution's holding company can be used to satisfy this requirement. Auditors must receive examination reports,
supervisory agreements and reports of enforcement actions. In addition, financial statements prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management's certifications
concerning responsibility for the financial statements, internal controls and compliance with legal requirements
designated by the FDIC, and an attestation by the auditor regarding the statements of management relating to the
internal controls must be submitted. For institutions with total assets of more than $3 billion, independent auditors
may be required to review quarterly financial statements. FDICIA requires that independent audit committees be
formed, consisting of outside directors only. The committees of such institutions must include members with
experience in banking or financial management, must have access to outside counsel, and must not include
representatives of large customers.

Capital Adequacy Requirements. The FDIC has adopted regulations establishing minimum requirements
for the capital adequacy of insured institutions. The FDIC may establish higher minimum requirements if, for
example, a bank has previously received special attention or has a high susceptibility to interest rate risk.

The FDIC's risk-based capital guidelines generally require state banks to have a minimum ratio of Tier 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and a ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%. The
capital categories have the same definitions for the Bank as for the Company. As of December 31, 2004, the Bank's
ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets was 11.11% and its ratio of total capltal to total risk- weighted
assets was 12.25%.

The FDIC's leverage guidelines require state banks to maintain Tier 1 capital of no less than 5.0% of
average total assets, except in the case of certain highly rated banks for which the requirement is 3.0% of average
total assets. The TDB has issued a policy, which generally requires state chartered banks to maintain a leverage
ratio (defined in accordance with federal capital guidelines) of 6.0%. As of December 31, 2004, the Bank's ratio of
Tier I capital to average total assets (leverage ratio) was 7.74%.

Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies. The federal banking regulators are required to take "prompt
corrective action” with respect to capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulations define, for each capital category,
the levels at which institutions are "well capitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undercapitalized," "significantly
under capitalized" and "critically under capitalized." A "well capitalized” bank has a total risk-based capital ratio of
10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; a leverage ratio of 5.0% or higher; and is not
subject to any written agreement, order or directive requiring it to maintain a specific capital level for any capital
measure. An "adequately capitalized" bank has a total risk based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0% or higher if the bank was rated a composite
1 in its most recent examination report and is not experiencing significant growth); and does not meet the criteria for
a well capitalized bank. A bank is "undercapitalized" if it fails to meet any one of the ratios required to be
adequately capitalized. : '

In addition to requiring undercapitalized institutions to submit a capital restoration plan, agency regulations

contain broad restrictions on certain activities of undercapitalized institutions including asset growth, acquisitions,
branch establishment, and expansion into new lines of business. With certain exceptions, an insured depository
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institution is prohibited from making capital distributions, including dividends, and is prohibited from paying
management fees to control persons if the institution would be undercapitalized after any such distribution or
payment.

As an institution's capital decreases, the FDIC's enforcement powers become more severe. A significantly
undercapitalized institution is subject to mandated capital raising activities, restrictions on interest rates paid and
transactions with affiliates, removal of management, and other restrictions. The FDIC has only very limited
discretion in dealing with a critically undercapitalized institution and is virtually required to appoint a, receiver or
conservator.

‘ Banks with risk-based capital and leverage ratios below the required minimums may also be subject to
certain administrative actions, including the termination of deposit insurance upon notice and hearing, or a
temporary suspension of insurance without a hearing in the event the institution has no tangible capital.

Management believes that the Company meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject at
December 31, 2004. The Bank's capital ratios exceeded the minimum requirements for "well capitalized"
institutions under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action at December 31, 2004. As a result, the
Company does not believe that FDICIA's prompt corrective action regulations will have any material effect on the
activities or operations of the Bank. It should be noted, however, that a bank's capital category is determined solely
for the purpose of applying the FDICIA's "prompt corrective action" régulations and that the capital category may
not constitute an accurate representation of the Bank's overall financial condition or prospects.

Deposit fnsurance Assessments. The Bank must pay assessments to the FDIC for federal deposit insurance
protection. The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment system as required by FDICIA. Under this system,
FDIC-insured depository institutions pay insurance premiums at rates based on their risk classification. Institutions
assigned to higher-risk classifications (that is, institutions that pose a greater risk of loss to their respective deposit
insurance funds) pay assessments at higher rates than institutions that pose a lower risk. An institution's risk
classification is assigned based on its capital levels and the level of supervisory concern the institution poses to the
regulators. In addition, the FDIC can impose special assessments in certain instances. The current range of BIF
assessments is between 0% and 0.27% of deposits. :

The FDIC established a process for raising or lowering all rates for insured institutions semi-annually if
conditions warrant a change. Under this new system, the FDIC has the flexibility to adjust the assessment rate
schedule twice a year without seeking prior public comment, but only within a range of five cents per $100 above or
below the premium schedule adopted. Changes 'in the rate schedule outside the five-cent range above or below the
current schedule can be made by the FDIC only after a full rulemaking with opportunity for public comment.

In addition to BIF assessments, banks insured under the BIF are required to pay a portion of the interest due
on bonds that were issued by the Financing Corporation ("FICO™) to help shore up the ailing Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation in 1987. With regard to the assessment for the FICO obligation, for the fourth quarter
2004, the BIF rate was 0.0146% of deposits. The FICO assessment rate is adjusted quarterly,

- Enforcement Powers. The FDIC and the other federal banking agencies have broad enforcement powers,
including the power to terminate deposit insurance, impose substantial fines and other civil and criminal penalties
and appoint a conservator or receiver. Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and supervisory
agreements could subject the Company or its banking subsidiaries, as well as officers, directors and other institution-
affiliated parties of these organizations, to administrative sanctions and potentially substantial civil money penalties.
“The appropriate federal banking agency may appoint the FDIC as conservator or receiver for a banking institution
(or the FDIC may appoint itself, under certain circumstances) if any one or more of a number of circumstances exist,
including, without limitation, the fact that the banking institution is undercapitalized and has no reasonable prospect
of becoming adequately capitalized; fails to become adequately capitalized when required to do so; fails to submit a
timely and acceptable capital restoration plan; or materially fails to implement an accepted capital restoration plan.
The TDB also has broad enforcement powers over the Bank, including the power to impose orders, remove officers
and directors, impose fines and appoint supervisors and conservators.

Brokered Deposit Restrictions. Adequately capitalized institutions cannot accept, renew or roll over
brokered deposits except with a waiver from the FDIC, and are subject to restrictions on the interest rates that can be
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paid on such deposits. Undercapitalized institutions may not accept, renew or roll over brokered deposits.

Cross-Guarantee Provisions. The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989
("FIRREA") contains a "cross-guarantee" provision which generally makes commonly controlled insured depository
institutions liable to the FDIC for any losses incurred in connection w1th the failure of a commonly controlled
depository institution. \

Community Reinvestment Act (CRA). The CRA and the regulations issued thereunder are intended to
encourage banks to help meet the credit needs of their service area, including low and moderate income
neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operations of the banks. These regulations also provide for
regulatory assessment of a bank's record in meeting the needs of its service area when considering applications to
establish branches, merger applications and applications to acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another
bank. FIRREA requires federal banking agencies to make public a rating of a bank's performance under the CRA. In
the case of a bank holding company, the CRA performance record of the banks involved in the transaction are
reviewed in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of shares or assets of a bank
or to merge with any other bank holding company. An unsatlsfactory record can substantially delay or block the
transaction. :

Consumer Laws and Regulations. In addition to the laws and regulations discussed herein, the Bank is also
subject to certain consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consumers in transactions with banks.
While the list set forth herein is not exhaustive, these laws and regulations include the Truth in Lending Act, the
Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, and the Fair Housmg Act, among others. These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure
requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits
or making loans to such customers. The Bank must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer
protection laws and regulations as part of their ongoing customer relations.-

Instability of Regulatory Structure. Various legislation, such as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which
expanded the powers of banking institutions and bank holding companies, and proposals to overhaul the bank
regulatory system and limit the investments that a depository institution may make with insured funds, is from time
to time introduced in Congress. Such legislation may change banking statutes and the operating environment of the
Company and the Bank in substantial and unpredictable ways. The Company cannot determine the ultimate effect
that the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act will have or the effect that potential legislation, if enacted, or implementing
regulations with respect thereto, would have, upon the financial condition or results of operations of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

Expanding Enforcement Authority. One of the major additional burdens imposed on the banking industry
by FDICIA is the increased ability of banking regulators to monitor the activities of banks and their holding
companies. In addition, the Federal Reserve and FDIC possess extensive authority to police unsafe or unsound
practices and violations of applicable laws and regulations by depository institutions and their holding companies.
For example, the FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any institution, which it determines has engaged in
an unsafe or unsound practice. The agencies can also assess civil money penalties, issue cease and desist or removal
-orders, seek injunctions, and publicly disclose such actions. FDICIA, FIRREA and other laws have expanded the
agencies' authority in recent years, and the agencies have not yet fully tested the-limits of their powers.

Effect on Economic Environment. The policies of regulatory authorities, including the monetary policy of
the Federal Reserve, have a significant effect on the operating results of bank holding companies and their
subsidiaries. Among the means available to the Federal Reserve to affect the money supply are open market
operations in U.S. Government securities, changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowings, and changes in
reserve requirements against member bank deposits. These means are used in varying combinations to influence
overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposits, and their use may affect interest rates
charged on loans or paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve mohetary pblicies have materially affected the operating results of commercial banks in
the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The nature of future monetary policies and-the effect of
such policies on the business and eamings of the Company and the Bank cannot be predicted.
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Item 2. Properties - -

The Company conducts business at twelve banking locations, with two located in Mount Pleasant, two
located 'in Texarkana, seven located in.the Northeast Texas communities of Bogata, Commerce, Mount Vernon,
Paris, Pittsburg, Sulphur Springs, Talco’ and one located in the West Texas community of Fort Stockton. The
Company's headquarters are located at 100 West Arkansas in Mount Pleasant in a two-story office building. The

Company owns all of its locations. The fo llowing table sets forth specific information on. each of the Company's

locations:
Location "~ Address Peposits af
S December 31, 2004
(Dollars in thousands)

Bogata .. 110 Halesboro Street, Bogata, Texas 75417 $ 22,185
Commerce 1108 Park Street, Commerce, Texas 75429 33,416
Fort Stockton ! #1 Spring Drive, Fort Stockton, Texas 79735 691
Mount Pleasant-Downtown 100 West Arkansas, Mount Pleasant, Texas 75455 168,625
Mount Pleasant-South‘Fz) S 2317 South Jefferson, MountPleasant, Texas 75455
Mount Vernon 304 South Highway 37, Mount Vernon, Texas 75457 1,354
Paris ‘ 3250 Lamar Avenue Paris, Texas 75460 82,844
Pittsburg. ‘ ‘116 South Greer Blvd., Pittsburg, Texas 75686 - . 20,562
Sulphur Springs 919 Gilmer Street, Sulphur Springs, Texas 75482 62,157
Talco-~ - 104 Broad Street, Talco, Texas 75487 13,807
Texarkana 2202 St- Michael Drive, Texarkana, Texas 75503 27,283 ¢
Texarkana—West @, . 5800 West_7th Street, Texarkana, Texas 75503 819

m Location offers loans and time dep051ts only )
@ Combmed with Mt. Pleasant Downtown location dep051ts
@ Opened in November 2004.

@ Opened in August 2004.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

"The Compény faces ordinary routing litigation arising in the normal course of business. In'the opinion of
management, liabilities (if ‘any) arising from such claims will not have a matenal adverse effect upon the busmess
results of opera‘uons or financial condltlon of the Company

In November 1998, Guaranty Leasing was informed by the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") that it
has taken the position that certain losses taken by the “1992 Partnership” during 1994, 1995 and 1996 of $302,000,
$410,000 and $447,000, respectively, would be disallowed. In October 2001, Guaranty Leasing was informed by -
the Service that it has taken the position that certain losses-taken by that Partnership during 1997 of $487,000 would
also be disallowed. In September 2002, the Company received from the Service a Notice of Final Partnership
Administrative Adjustment disallowing these deductions. Based upon the advice of counsel, the Company believes .
that it has correctly reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it has obtained appropriate legal, accounting
and appraisal opinions and authority to support its posmons The Company recorded and expensed the tax affect of
the dlsallowed deductlons n 2002 ‘

~-In February 2003, the Company filed a petition to begin the process to litigate the matter in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas the ("Texas Court"). In October 2003, the Government filed a
Motion to Transfer Venue from the “Texas Court” to the United States District Court for the Eastern District for
Virginia, (the "Virginia Court") but in the alternative, claimed the "Texas Court* had no jurisdiction to hear the case.
In November 2003, the Government filed a Motion to Stay Proceedings. In December 2003, and still in effect, the
“Texas Court” issued an Order to Stay Proceedings pending the Court’s ruling on the Govénment’s Motion to
Transfer Venue.
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In June 2004 in a similar case, of which the Company is not a party, the Government filed a brief with the
United ‘States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“the Federal Circuit”) essentially agreeing and concluding
that Section 6226(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code is-a venue provision and not a jurisdictional provision. This 1s
the same position of the Company in its pending litigation against the Government in the "Texas Court”. In July
2004, the “Texas Court” granted a Motion to Continue Hearing on the United States Opposed Motion to Transfer
Venue. " The “Texas Court” and the Company are currently awa1t1ng a ruling from the “Federal Circuit” on the
Jurlsdlctlonal V. venue 1ssue .

As of December 31, 2004, the “Federal Circuit” has not made a definitive ruling on the issue of whether
Section 6226(a)(2) is jurisdictional or whether the statute is merely a venue provision. It is anticipated by legal
"counsel that given the Government’s change of position, the "Federal Circuit” will determine that Section 6226(a)(2)
addresses the issue of venue and not jurisdiction; but a definitive answer must await a ruling from the "Federal
Circuit". Oral arguments were presented to the "Federal Circuit" in October 2004 and it is anticipated that a ruling
will be issued within the near future.

‘ In March 2004, the Company was informed by the Service that it had taken the position that certain losses

taken by the “1994 Partnership” during the tax years of 1994 through 1999 would be disallowed and tax owed
totaling $438,579 would be assessed. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has not received a Notice of Final
Partnership Administrative Adjustment on this Partnership. Based upon the advice of counsel, the Company
believes that it has correctly reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it has obtained appropriate legal,
accounting and appraisal opinions and authority to support its positions.

In addition to the ongomg litigation regarding the Partnerships, the Service is currently in the process of
examining the tax deductions taken for the “1995 Partnership”. No determination has been made regarding the
disallowance of similar deductions taken by this Partnership. Should the Service ultimately disallow the related tax
deductions taken durlng the rernaining years of the “1992 Partnership” as well as the other two Partnerships, the
Company will be required to recognize an additional maximum tax liability of approximately $3.9 million plus
possible penalty and interest. The Company is actively contesting the position of the Service in connection with this
matter, and has taken and will continue to take, appropriate steps necessary to protect its legal position. Any final
determination with respect to the Partnerships will be binding on the Company.

Iteﬁ 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitied 10 a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
PARTI1

Itér_n 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity
Securities

The Common Stock began trading on May 21, 1998 and is listed on the Nasdaq National Market System
("Nasdaqg NMS") under the symbol "GNTY". Prior to that date, the Company's Common Stock was privately held
and not listed on any public exchange or actively traded. The Company had a total of 2,912,677 shares outstanding
at December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2004, there were 349 registered shareholders of record. The number of
beneficial shareholders is unknown to the Company at this time.

The following table presents the high and low Common Stock prices reported on the Nasdaq NMS by
quarter during the two years ended December 31, 2004:

2004 2003

High Low High Low
Fourth quarter '$ 2283 $ 2044 $ 22.00 $ 17.78
Third quarter 24.00 17.05 18.15 16.40
Second quarter . 20.65 ©19.00 16.59 14.90
First quarter 22.10 20.00 16.40 15.64
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Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the Company's
Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefore. While the Company has declared dividends on its
.Common Stock since 1980, and paid semi-annual dividends aggregating $0.40 per share per annum in 2004, there is
no assurance that the Company will continue to pay dividends in the future.

The principal source of cash revenues to the Company is dividends paid by the Bank with respect to the
Bank's capital stock. There are certain restrictions on the payment of such dividends imposed by federal and state
banking laws, regulations and authorities. See ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Resuits of Operations” and "Supervision and Regulation — ""The Bank".

The Company’s cash dividends paid per share by quafter for the Company’s last two fiscal years were as

follows: ‘
2004 2003

Fourth quarter $ 020 $ 020

Third quarter - B

Second quarter 0.20 0.17

First quarter ’ Co-

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The Company currently has stock options outstanding. The options were granted under the Company’s
1998 Stock Incentive Plan which was approved by the Company’s shareholders. The following table provides
information as of December 31, 2004 regarding the Company’s equity compensation plans under which the
Company’s equity securities are authorized for issuance:

- EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION.

(2) (b) , (0

Number of securities

remaining available for

Number of securities to future issuance under
be issued upon exercise Weighted-average equity compensation
. ] of outstanding options, exercise price of o plans (excluding securities
. Plan category warrants and rights outstanding options reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans ) . .
approved by security holders 141,300 ) 11.58 854,500

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 141,300 $ 11.58

854,500
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The following table provides information about Company purchases of equity securities that are registered
by the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act during the year ended December 31, 2004:

Total Number of Maximum Number
Shares Purchased as o . of Shares that May
Part of Publicly Average Price Yet Be Purchased
Announced Plans Paid per ~ Under the Plans
Period or Programs (1) ) Share or Programs
July 1, 2004 - July 31, 2004 5,000 $ 19.75 20,500
August 1, 2004 - August 31, 2004 6,451 19.50 14,049

Total ‘ 11,451 $ 19.61

(1) Under a stock repurchase program approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on August 20, 2002, publicty announced on
August 27, 2002 and implemented effective November 15, 2002, the Company was authorized to repurchase up to 100,000 shares of its

Common Stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

17




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Selected Consolidated Financial Data Of The Company

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and the
information contained in “Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations”.

The following table presents selected historical consolidated financial data as of and for the five years ended
December 31, 2004 and is derived from the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited

by an independent registered public accounting firm.

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data: )
Interest income $ 27,029 8 27,564 28,955  § 29,861 . § 29,017
Interest expense ‘ 9,137 10,242 12,272 16,363 16,742

Net interest income 17,862 17,322 16,683 13,498 12,275
Provision for loan losses ‘ 930 1,075 1,260 1,385 595

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 16,962 16,247 15,423 12,113 - 11,680
Noninterest income 4,756 4,937 5,056 6,201 3,723
Noninterest expense 16,483 15,837 14,692 13,519 12,140

Eamings before taxes 5,235 5,347 5,787 4,795 3,263
Provision for income tax expense 1,575 1,503 1,410 1,505 755

Net earnings $ 3,660 § 3,844 4377 % 3290 § 2,508
Common Share Data:
Net earnings (basic) $ 125 § 132 146 § 109§ 0.80
Net earnings (diluted) < 1.24 1.30 1.45 1.09 0.80
Book value 13.26 12.47 11.81 10.59 9.67
Tangible book value 12.46 11.67 11.01 9.82 8.85
Cash dividends 0.40 0.37 0.32 0.28 0.25
Dividend payout ratio 31.88% 28.12% 21.73% 25.56% 30.70%
Weighted average common shares outstanding-basic

(in thousands) : 2,918 2,923 2,991 3,016 3,126
Weighted average common shares outstanding-diluted

{in thousands) ) 2,963 2,953 3,013 3,027 3,133
Period end shares outstanding (in thousands) 2,913 2,922 2,932 3,004 3,044
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Total assets $ 541,966 § 517,078 517,968 $ 460,509 § 411,031
Securities 103,751 99,614 106,952 81,715 81,620
Loans held for sale 1,749 1,244 5,727 1,634 172
Loans 375,585 364,270 359,888 329,621 287,163
Allowance for loan losses 4,154 3,906 3,692 3,346 2,578
Total deposits 433743 407,847 424,950 383,279 358,265
Total shareholders’ equity 38,624 36,448 34,644 31,827 29,425
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Average Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets

Securities

Loans ¥
Allowance for .loan losses
Total deposits

Total shareholders’ equity

Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets

Return on average common equity
Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio 2

Asset Quality Ratios™®:

Nonperforming assets to total Joans and other real estate
Net loan charge-offs to average loans

Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Alfowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans

Capital Ratios @,
Leverage ratio .
Average shareholders’ equity to average total assets

Tier | risk-based capital ratio

Total risk-based capital ratio

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

2004

527,025
97,549
371,586
4,091
420,592
37,687

0.69%

9.71

3.71
73.17

1.13%

0.18

1.10
116.16

8.73%

7.15
12.52
13.65

2003

2002

2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

$ 524,675
109,325
359,829

3,767
423283
35,496

0.73%
10.83

3.63
71.75

0.90%

0.24

1.07
152.52

8.32%

6.77
12.10
13.18

490,620
91,710
342,823
3,485
403,125
33,934

0.89%
12.90

3.73
68.79

1.18%
0.27
1.01

114.87

8.62%

6.92
12.06
13.12

) Net earnings per share are based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.

@ Includes loans held for sale.

%) Calculated by dividing total noninterest expenses by net interest income plus noninterest income, excluding

securities losses or gains. Taxes are not part of this calculation,

432,200
74,826
302,656
2,735
374,566
30,629

0.76%
10.74

3.46
70.10

1.87%

0.20

1.0t
59.23

8.44%

7.09
11.52
12.58

“ At period end, except net loan charge-offs to average loans, and average shareholders' equity to average total assets which is for

periods ended at such date.

(5) Nonperforming loans consist of nonaccrual loans, loans contractually past due 90 days or more and restructured loans.
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394,496
84,933
267,996
2,519
345,342
28,266

0.64%

8.87

3.44
75.72

1.73%

0.19

0.50
54.83

8.60%

7.17
11.79
12.69




. Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Statements and financial discussion and analysis contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not
historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements which describe the Company’s future plans, strategies
and expectations, are based on assumptions and involve a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are
beyond the Company’s control. The important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the
forward-looking statements include, without limitation: '

‘changes in interest rates and market prices, which could reduce the Company’s net interest
-margins, asset valuations and expense expectations;

changes in the levels of loan prepayments and the resulting effects on the value of the Company’s
loan portfolio;

changes in local economic and business conditions which adversely affect the Company’s

“customers and their ability to transact profitable business with the Company, including the ability

of its borrowers to repay their loans according to their terms or a change in the value of the related
collateral,

increased competition for deposits and loans adversely affecting rates and terms;

the timing, impact and other uncertainties of the Company’s potential future acquisitions,
including the Company’s ability to identify suitable future acquisition candidates, the success or
failure in the integration of their operations, and the Company’s ability to enter new markets

successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities;

increased credit risk in the Company’s assets and increased operating risk caused by a material
change in commercial, consumer and/or real estate loans as a percentage of the total loan portfolio;

the failure of assumptions underlying the establishment of and provisions made to the allowance
for loan losses;

changes in the availability of funds resulting in increased costs or reduced Hquidity;
changes in the Company’s ability to pay;divideﬁds‘ on its Common Stock;

increased asset levels and changes in thetcomposition of assets and the resulting impact on the
Company’s capital levels and regulatory capital ratios;

the Company’s ability to acquire, operate and maintain cost effective and efficient systems without
incurring unexpectedly difficult or expensive but necessary technological changes;

the loss of senior management or operating personnel and the potential inability to hire qualified
personnel at reasonable compensation levels;

the effects of the Internal Revenue Service’s examination regarding the Company’s leveraged
leasing transactions;

changes in economic and business conditions which would adversely affect the value of the

Aircraft Finance Trust (“AFT”), and cause the Company to not fully realize its current investment
in AFT; and,
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e changes in status of government regulations or their interpretations applicable to bank holding
companies and the Company’s present and future banking and other subsidiaries, including
changes in tax requirements and tax rates.

All written or oral forward-looking statements attrlbutable to the Company are expressly qualified in their
entirety by these cautlonary statements

Application of Critical Accounting Policies And Accountin‘g Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to' make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
fmancxal statements and accompanying notes. While the Company bases its estimates on historical experience,
current mformatlon and other factors deemed to be relevant, actual results could dlffer from those estimates.

The Company considers accounting estimates to be critical to its reported financial results if (i) the
accounting estimate requires management to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain and (i1)
different estimates that management reasonably could have used for the accounting estimate in the current period, or
changes in the accounting estimate that are reasonab]y likely to occur from period to period, would have a material

"impact, on the Company’s financial statements. Accounting policies related to allowance for loan losses and loss
contingencies are considered to be critical as these policies involve considerable subjective judgment and estimation
by management. Critical accounting pohcxes and the Company s procedures related to these policies, are described
in detail below. : ‘

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through charges to
earnings in the form of a provision for loan lossés. Management has established an allowance for loan losses, which
it believes is adequate to absorb estimated losses in the Company's loan portfolio. Based on an evaluation of the
loan portfolio, management. presents a quarterly review of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses to the
Company’s Board of Directors. In making its evaluation, management considers the diversification by industry of
the Company's commercial loan portfolio, the effect of changes in the local real estate market on collateral values,
the results of recent regulatory examinations, the effects on the loan portfolio of current economic indicators and
their probable impact on borrowers, the amount of charge-offs for the perlod the amount of nonperforming loans
and related collateral security, the results of management’s mternal loan review, its own peer group analysis, and the
evaluation of its loan portfolio through a semi-annual external loan review conducted by IBS. Charge-offs occur
when loans are deemed to be uncollectible. See additional discussion under the sections captioned, “Allowance for
Loan Losses” and “Provision for Loan Losses,” included elsewhere in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. '

Loss Contingencies. There are times when non-recurring events occur that require management to consider
whether an accrual for a loss contingency is appropriate. Accruals for such loss contingencies typically relate to
legal proceedings and other claims and are recorded when management believes the likelihood of an adverse
outcome is probable and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. Contingent liabilities are often resolved
over long time periods. Estimating probable losses requires analysis of multiple forecasts that often depend on
judgments about potential actions by third parties. While there can be no assurance, the Company currently believes
the outcome of current outstanding . legal .proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations. The outcomes are inherently uncertain, and it is possible that
some of these matters may be resolved materially adversely to the Company. The adverse resolution of any one or
more of these matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of
operations. : ' ‘
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Overview .

The Company’s results of operations are dependent primarily on net interest income, which is the
difference between the income earned on its loan, securities and investment portfolios and its cost of funds,
consisting of the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Results of operations are increased by the Company’s
noninterest income and decreased by the provision for loan losses and noninterest expenses. General economic and
competitive conditions, particularly changes in interest rates, prepayment rates of mortgage-backed securities and
loans, repricings of loan relationships, government policies and actions of regulatory authorities, also significantly
affect the Company’s results of operations. Future changes in applicable law, regulations or government policies
may also have a material impact on. the Company.

Net eamlngs were $3.7 million, $3.8 million and $4.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectlvely, and diluted net earnings per share were $1.24, $1.30, and $1.45 for, these same
periods. The decrease in earnings from 2003 to 2004 resulted pnmarlly from an increase in noninterest expense and
a decrease in noninterest income, pamally offset by an increase in net interest income, caused by a growth in
interest-earnings assets and a lower cost of funds. Average interest-earning assets increased to $481.7 million from
$476.9 million, or 1. .0% in 2004, while the cost of funds decreased from 2.46% in 2003 to 2.24% in 2004. The
resulting net interest margin increased from 3.63% in 2003 to 3.71% in 2004, an increase of 8 basis points or 2.2%.
Noninterest income decreased $181,000, or 3.7% primarily from fewer' gains on the sale of securities and a decrease
in the sale of mortgage loans into the secoﬁdary'mark'et. Noninterest expense increased $646,000, or 4.1% during
2004 compared to 2003 resulting primarily from an increase in occupancy expenses and advertising. The Company
also incurred additional expeénses to open the new Texarkana location in the third quarter of 2004, éxpenses to open
the new Mount Vernon location in the fourth ‘quarter of 2004 and expenses related to the closing of the Deport
location in the third quarter of 2004. The decrease in earnings from 2002 to 2003 resulted primarily from an
increase in noninterest expense and a decrease in noninterest income, partially offset by an increase in net interest
income. The Company posted returns on average assets of 0.69%, 0.73% and 0.89% and returns on average
common equlty of 9. 71%, 10.83% and 12. 90% in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Total assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $542.0 million and $517.1 million, respectxvely Total
_deposits at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $433.7 million and $407.8 million, respectively, an increase of $25.9
million, or 6.3% in 2004. The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in NOW accounts of
$5.7 ‘million, an increase in savings and money market accounts of $8.7 million and an increase in'noninterest-
bearing accounts of $10.1 million. At Deécémber 31, 2004 and 2003, securities totaled $103.8 million and $99.6
million, respectively, ' The increase in securities during 2004 was primarily due to an increase of $9.4 million in state
and municipal securities, partially offset by an increase in normal pay-downs in the secondary market. Common
sharcholders’ equity was $38.6 million and $36.4 million at De¢ember 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
increase in common shareholder’s equity for the year ended December 31, 2004 reﬂects earnmgs retention, partially
offset by the purchase of treasury stock and payment of dividends.

Results of Operations
Net Interest Income -

Net -interest income represents the -amount by which interest income on interest-earning assets, which
include securities, loans, and federal funds scld, €xceeds interest expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities,
. which include deposits and other borrowed funds. Net interest income is the principal source of the Company's
earnings. Interest rate fluctuations, as. well as- changes in the amount and type of earning: assets and 11ab111t1es
combine to affect net interest income.

2004 versus 2003 Net mterest income, before the provision for loan losses, increased from $17.3 million
in 2003 to $17.9 million in 2004, an increase of $570,000, or 3.3%. This resulted in net interest margins of 3.71%
and 3.63% and net interest spreads of 3.37% and 3.32% for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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The increase in net interest income for 2004 was driven by an increase in average loans of $11.8 million, or
3.3% and a decrease in average time deposits of $14.1 million, or 6.1%. The impact of the increase in average loans
was offset by the decrease in the yield on average interest-earning assets from 5.78% in 2003 to 5.61% in 2004. The.
yield on average mterest—bearmg liabilities also decreased from 2.46% in 2003 to 2. 24% in 2004,

2003 versus 2002 Net interest mcome before the pr0v1s1on for loan 1osses increased from §16.7. mllhon
in 2002 to $17.3 million in 2003, an increase of $639,000, or 3.8% prlmarlly duetoa decrease in interest expense of
$2.0 million, or 16.5%, partially.offset by a decrease in interest income of $1. 4 million, or 4.8%. This resulted in net
interest margins of 3.63% and 3.73% and net mterest spreads of 3.32% and 3,31% for the years ‘ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectlvely

The increase in net interest income for-2003 was primarily due to the decrease in cost of interest-bearing
liabilities from 3.16% in 2002 to 2.46% in 2003. While the Company had an increase in average loans of $17.0
~million, or 4.96% and average securities of $17.6 million, or 19.21%, the impact of these increases were partially
offset by lower yield on interest-earning assets which decreased from 6.47% in 2002 to 5.78% in 2003. The lower
yields and lower cost of funds resulted from a decrease in the prime rate during 2002 from 4.75% to 4.50% and a
further reduction in 2003 from 4.50% to 4.00%.
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The following table presents for the periods indicated an analysis of net interest income by each major
category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, the average amounts outstanding and the interest
earned or paid on such amounts. The table also sets forth the average rate earned on total interest-eamning assets, the
average rate paid on total interest-bearing liabilities and the net interest margin on average total interest-eamning
assets for the same periods. No tax equivalent adjustments were made and all average balances are daily average

balances. Nonaccruing loans have been included in the table as loans carrying a zero yield.
' . . Co Years Ended December 31,

2004 R 2003 - 2002
"Average Interest Average Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Qutstanding Earned/ Yield/ Outstanding Earned/ Yield/  OQutstanding  Earned/ Yield/

Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate
- (Dollars in thousands) ’

Assets
Interest-eaming assets: . . ) - .
Loans $ 371,586 $ 22,990 6.19% § 359,829 $ 23,473 6.52% % 342,823 $ 24,119 7.04%
Securities 97,549 3,769 3.86 109,325 3,977 3.64 " 91,710 4,629 5.05
Federal funds sold and :
interest-bearing deposits 12,557 270 2.15 7,722 114 1.48 12,821 207 1.61
Total interest-earning assets ) 481,692 27,029 5.61% 476,876 27,564 5.78% 447,354 28,955 6.47%
Less allowance for loan losses (4,091) (3,767) (3,485)

Total interest-earning

assets, net of allowance 477,601 473,109 443,869
Non-earning assets: ‘ :
Cash and due from banks 18,654 19,440 14,640
Premises and equipment 13,378 13,383 - 13,442
Interest receivable and ‘
other assets 16,576 17,462 17,437
Other real estate owned 816 1,281 1,232
Total assets 3 527,025 $ 524,675 $ 490,620
Liabilities and

shareholders’ equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW, savings, and money

market accounts $ 124917 $ 1,210 097% § 121439 § 941 0.77% $ 108,664 $ 1,507 1.39%
Time deposits 218,837 4,862 222 232,976 6,299 2.70 231,196 8,330 3.60
Total interest-bearing

deposits 343,754 6,072 177 354,415 7,240 2.04 339,860 9,837 2.89
FHLB, federal funds purchased,
and other liabilities 53,720 2,061 3.84 51,377 2,001 3.89 40,827 1,639 4.02
Junior subordinated debentures 10,258 1,004 9.79 - - - - - -
Long-term debt - - - 10,000 1,001 10.01 7,750 796 10.27
Total interest-bearing

liabilities 407,732 9,137 2.24% 415,792 10242 2.46% 388,437 12272 3.16%

Noninterest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits 76,838 68,868 63,265
Accrued interest, taxes and

other liabilities 4,768 4,519 . 4,984

Total liabilities 489,338 489,179 456,686

Shareholders’ equity 37,687 35,496 33,934

Total liabilities and

shareholders” equity 3 527,025 $ 524,675 $ 490,620
Net interest income $ 17,892 $ 17.322 $ 16.683
Net interest spread . 3.37% 3.32% 3.31%
Net interest margin 3.71% 3.63% 3.73%
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The following table presents, for the periods indicated, the dollar amount of changes in interest income and
interest expense for the major components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and distinguishes
between the changes in interest income and interest expense attributable to changes in average outstanding balances
and changes in interest rates. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which can be
segregated, have been allocated proportionately to changes due to rate and changes due to volume.

‘ Years Ended December 31,
2004 vs. 2003 : 2003 vs. 2002

Increase (Decrease) Due To Increase (Decrease) Due To
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning assets: ‘ :
Loans S 767 8 (1,250) S - (483) $  LI197 § (1,843) $ (646)

Securities (429) 221 {(208) 890 (1,542) (652)
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits 72 84“ 156 (82) (an (93)
Total increase (decrease) in interest income 410 ‘ (945) (535) 2,005 (3,396) (1,391)
Interest-bearing liabilities: ‘ ‘ '
NOW, savings and money market accounts 27 . 242 269 178 (744) (566)
Time deposits (382) (1,055) (1,437 64 . (2,095) (2,031)
FHLB advances and federal funds purchased 91 3D 60 424 (62) 362
Junior subordinated debentures - 3 3 - - -
Long-term debt . ' - - . 231 (26) 205
Total (decrease) increase in interest expense . (264) . (841 (1,105) 897 . 2,927 (2,030)
Increase(decrease) in net interest income ‘ $ 674 $ (104) 570§ 1,108 3 (469) § 639

Provision for Loan Losses

The Company’s provision for loan losses is established through charges to operating income in the form of
the provision in order to bring the total allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management of
the Company based on such factors as historical loan loss experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by
the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles,
general economic conditions, and other factors related to the collectability of loans in the Company’s portfolio as
discussed under “Allowance for Loan Losses”. In the past two years, the Company has made significant
enhancements to the allowance for loan loss methodology in an effort to better quantify the risk associated with
these internal and external factors.

The Company's provision for loan losses for 2004 was $930,000 compared with $1.1 million for 2003.
The decrease in the provision was due primarily to a decrease in net charge-offs of $179,000, or 20.8%. Average
loans outstanding increased from $359.8 million for 2003 to $371.6 million for 2004, an increase of $11.8 million,
or 3.3%. Total classified loans increased from $9.0 million at December 31, 2003 to $10.9 million at December 31,
2004, an increase of $1.9 million, or 21.1%. Management believes the Company has maintained sound asset quality
as net charge-offs remain at manageable levels totaling $682,000, or 0.18% of average loans in 2004 compared with
$861,000, or 0.24% of average loans in 2003. The Company’s provision for loan losses decreased from $1.3 million
in 2002 to $1.1 million in 2003 primarily due to a decrease in nonperforming assets.
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Noninterest Income

The Company’s primary sources of recurring noninterest income are service charges on deposit accounts,
fee income and other noninterest income. The Company also has nonrecurring sources of noninterest income
derived from net gains on the sale of securities, net gains on the sale of mortgage loans and net gains on the sale of

assets.

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $4.8 million, a decrease of $181,000 or
3.7% compared with $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 and a decrease in 2003 of $119,000 or
2.4%, compared with $5.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The 2004 decrease is primarily due to the
decrease in the sale of mortgage loans into the secondary market. The net gain on sale of mortgage loans into the
-secondary market generated noninterest income of $331,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared with
$586,000 in 2003, a decrease of $255,000 or 56.5%. Net realized gain on sale of securities decreased to $120,000
for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared with $188,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003. These
decreases were partially offset by increases in service charges and fee income of $167,000, or 5.8% and $49,000, or
5.3%, respectively, during the same period.

The noninterest income for 2003 decreased compared to 2002 primarily due to a decrease in securities
gains of $192,000, an impairment charge of $113,000 and a loss associated with the AFT lease transaction, partially
offset by an increase in net gain on sale of loans due to more consumer refinancing into the secondary market.

During 2000, Guaranty Leasing acquired a 2.5% ownership interest in AFT for approximately $2.8 million.
The AFT ownership interest is classified as an Other Asset on the Company’s balance sheet. As of December 31,
2004 and 2003, the book value of the AFT ownership was $1.3 million and $1.4 million, respectively. Prior to
2004, on belief that the Company’s investment in AFT was impaired by declines in air travel, the uncertainly
surrounding the airline industry, the limited marketability of the AFT investment, and general economic conditions,
impairment charges of approximately $1.6 million were recorded and the carrying amount of the investment was
reduced to $1.4 million. During 2004, an impairment charge of $120,000 was recorded.

The following table presents for the periods indicated the major categories of noninterest income:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 3,036 § 2,869 % 2,957
Gain on sale of securities, net 120 188 380
Fee income : : 974 925 863
Fiduciary income 252 178 163
Earnings from key-man life insurance. 203, 251 236
Gain on sale of loans, net 331 586 272
(Loss) gain on sale of assets, net (143) - 97
Gain on sale of ORE, net 21 32 12
(Loss) from investment in AFT : - (60)
Impairment of investment in AFT (120) (113)
Other noninterest income } 82 81 76
Total noninterest income $ 4756 _$. 4937 % 5,056

Noninterest Expense

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, noninterest expense totaled $16.5 million, $15.8
million and $14.7 million, respectively. The $646,000, or 4.1% increase in 2004 compared with 2003 was primarily
the result of an increase in occupancy expenses and advertising. Occupancy expenses increased $241,000, or 11.9%
over the same period in 2003 primarily due to the opening of the new bank location in Texarkana in July of 2004,
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the opening of the new bank location in Mount Vernon in October of 2004 and additional Company related
depreciation expense. An emphasis on advertising campaigns for each of the two new locations and for certificate
.of deposit specials, caused advertising expense to increase by $152,000, or 53.3% for the year ended December 31,
2004. Employee compensation and benefits expense decreased $45,000, or 0.5% for the year ended December 31,
2004. The decrease was due primarily to a lower bonus paid to officers and employees and a lower expense related
to employee benefits such as health insurance and 401(k) contributions for the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to the year ended December 31, 2003.

The increase in total noninterest expense for 2003 compared with 2002 of $1.1 million, or 7.8%, was
primarily the result of increases in employee compensation and benefits. Employee compensation and benefits
increased from $8.7 million in 2002 to $9.4 million in 2003, an increase of $660,000, or 7.6%. This increase was
due to an increase in full-time equivalent employees from 212 at December 31, 2002 to 226 at December 31, 2003,
an increase in normal salary adjustments, increased employee benefits and payroll taxes.

The Company’s efficiency ratio was 73.17% in 2004, 71.75% in 2003, and 68.79% in 2002. The
efficiency ratio is a supplemental financial measure utilized in management's internal evaluation of the Company's
performance and is not defined under generally accepted accounting principles. The efficiency ratio is calculated by
dividing total noninterest expense, excluding securities losses, by net interest income plus noninterest income,
excluding securities gains. Taxes are not part of this calculation. An increase in the efficiency ratio indicates that
more resources are being utilized to generate the same volume of income, while a decrease would indicate a more
efficient allocation of resources.

The following table presenté for the periods {ndicated the major categories of noninterest expense:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Employee compensation and benefits $ 9,326 § 9,371 § 8,711
Non-staff expenses:

Occupancy expenses 2,260 2,019 1,992

Legal and professional fees 1,156 1,168 933

Director and committee fees 507 560 534

Advertising : 436 284 310

ATM and debit card expense 437 363 317

. Office and computer supplies 299 301 265

Postage 198 211 187

Phone expense 267 ‘ 252 194

Other 1,597 1,308 1,249

Total non-staff expenses 7,157 6,466 5,981

Total noninterest expense $ 16,483 % 15,837 % 14,692

Income Taxes

Federal income tax is reported as income tax expense and is influenced by the amount of taxable income,
the amount of tax-exempt income, the amount of non-deductible interest expense and the amount of other non-
deductible expense. The Company did not utilize tax benefits on leveraged lease transactions in 2003 and 2004,
The Company utilized tax benefits on leveraged lease transactions in the amount of $960,000 for 2002. The
effective tax rates for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were 30.08%, 28.11% and 24.37%, respectively. Income taxes for
financial purposes in the consolidated statements of eamnings differ from the amount computed by applying the
statutory income tax rate of 35% to earnings before income taxes. The difference in the statutory rate compared
with the Company’s effective rate is primarily due to tax-exempt income in 2004, 2003 and 2002. The leverage
lease transaction had an additional impact in 2002.
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Additionally, the State of Texas imposes a franchise tax. Taxable income for the income tax component of
the Texas franchise tax is the federal pre-tax income, plus certain officers' salaries, less interest income from federal
securities. Total franchise tax expense was 337,000 in 2004, $38,000 in 2003 and $41,000 in 2002. Such expense
was included as a part of other noninterest expense.

Impact of Inflation

The effects of inflation on the local economy and on the Company's operating results have been relatively
modest for the past several years. Since substantially all of the Company's assets and liabilities are monetary in
nature, such as cash, securities, loans and deposits, their values are less sensitive to the effects of inflation than to
changing interest rates, which do not necessarily change in accordance with inflation rates. The Company tries to
control the impact of interest rate fluctuations by managing the relationship between its interest rate sensmve assets
and liabilities. See "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" below.

Financial Condition
Loan Portfolio (including loans held for sale)

The Company provides a broad range of commercial, real estate and consumer loan products to small and
medium-sized businesses and individuals in its market areas. The Company aggressively pursues qualified lending
customers in both the commercial and consumer sectors, providing customers with direct access to lending
personnel and prompt, professional service. The 87.0% gross loan to deposit ratio as of December 31, 2004, reflects
the Company’s commitment as an active lender in the local communities it serves. Total loans increased by $11.8
million, or 3.2% to $377.3 million at December 31, 2004 from $3635.5 million at December 31, 2003. Total loans
were $365.5 million and $365.6 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, reflecting little change. The
2004 growth in loans is reflective of a stable local economy, an aggressive advertising campaign, the Company’s
pro-lending reputation and the ability to obtain new loan customers from the new companies and individuals
entering the Company's market areas.
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The following table summarizes the loan portfolio (including loans held for sale) of the Company by type of
loan as of the dates indicated:

December 51,

2004 2003 ’ 2002 Vv . 2001 2000

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent R Amount Percent Amount " Percent

(DoHars in thousands)

Commercial $. 61,602 7 1633% § 55285 1513% § 58,661 16.05% § 66,641 20.12% § 66,616 23.18%
Agriculture : 10,963 281 10,173 278 . 9,989 2.73 8,589 2.59 8318 2.89
Real estate:

Construction and land . . ) .

development 31,917 8.46 22,020 6.02 14017 . 383 9,492 2.87 7316 2.55
14 faﬁwilyre?idenyial. L 145,886 38.66 136,717 . 3740, 139,156 3806 124,480 3758 102442 35.65
Loans held for sale 1,749 0.46 L1244 034 5,727, 1.57 1,634 0.49 172 0.06
Farmland B ) 16,178 4.29 20,267 554 14765 4.04 9,794 296 7,716 269
Commercial _ ‘ 75,183 19.92 79,953 2188 81,549 2233 68,165 20.58 61,224 2131
Multi-family residential 5,052 1.34 9,291 255 9,289 254 9,333 281 4,946 172
Consumer, net of uncamed discounts 28,804 7.63 30,564 836 326 8.85 13,126 10.00 28,585 9.95
Total loans B 577,334 10000% § 365514 °~  100.00% $ 365615 100.00% $ 331,254 100.00% S 287,335 100.00%

The primary lending focus of the Company is on loans to small and medium-sized businesses and one-to-
four family residential mortgage loans. The Company's commercial lending products include business loans,
commercial real estate loans, equipment loans, working capital loans, term loans, revolving lines of credit and letters
of credit. Most commercial loans are collateralized and on payment programs. The purpose of a particular loan.
generally determines its structure. In almost all cases, the Company requires personal guarantees on commercial
loans to help assure repayment. The following is a discussion of each of the Company’s major types of lending.

Commercial

The Company's commercial loans are primarily made within its market area and are underwritten on the
basis of the borrower’s ability to service such debt from income. As a general practice, the Company takes as
collateral a lien on any available real estate, equipment, or other assets owned by the borrower and obtains a
personal guaranty of the borrower. In general, commercial loans involve more credit risk than residential mortgage
loans and commercial mortgage loans and, therefore, usually yield a higher retum. The increased risk for
commercial loans is due to the type of collateral securing these loans. . The increased risk also derives from the
expectation. that commercial loans generally will be serviced principally from the business’ operations, and those
operations may not be successful. As a result of these additional complexities, variables and risks, commercial loans
require more thorough underwriting and servicing than other types of loans. The Company had $61.6 million in
commercial loans at December 31, 2004. '

Commercial Real Estate

In addition to commercial loans secured by real estate, the Company makes commercial mortgage loans to
finance the purchase of real property, which generally consists of real estate with completed structures. Commercial
real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of loans is dependent, in large
part, on sufficient income from the properties securing the loans to cover operating expenses and debt service. As a
general practice, the Company requires its commercial real estate loans to be secured by well-managed income
producing property with adequate margins and to be guaranteed by responsible parties. The Company's commercial
real estate loans are generally secured by first liens on real estate. Loans with fixed interest rates typically amortize
over a 10 to 15 year period with balloon payments due at the end of one to five years. Accordingly, repayment of
these loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy to a greater extent than
other types of loans. In underwriting commercial real estate loans, consideration is given to the property's operating
history, future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition. The
underwriting analysis also includes credit checks, appraisals and a review of the financial condition of the borrower
‘and guarantor. The Company had $75.2 million in commercial real estate loans at December 31, 2004,
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Construction

The Company makes loans to finance the construction of residential and, to a limited extent, nonresidential
properties. Construction foans generally are secured by first liens on real estate. The Company conducts periodic
inspections, either directly or through an agent, prior to approval of periodic draws on these loans. Construction
" loans involve additional risks attributable to the fact that loan finds are advanced upon the security of a project
under construction, and the project is of uncertain value prior to its completion. Because of uncertainties inherent in
estimating construction costs, the market value of the completed project and the effects of governmental regulation
- on real property, it can be difficult to accurately evaluate the total funds required to complete a project arid the
related loan to value ratio. As a result of these uncertainties, construction lending often involves the disbursement of
substantial funds with repayment dependent, in part, on the success of the ultimate project rather than the ability of a
borrower or guarantor to repay the loan. If the Company is forced to foreclose on a ‘project prior to completion, there
is no assurance that it will be able to recover the entire unpaid portion of the loan. In addition, the Company may be
required to fund additional amounts to complete a project and may have to hold the property for an indeterminate
period of time. While the Company has underwriting procedures designed to identify what management believes to
be acceptable levels of risk in construction lending, thése procedures may not prevent losses from the risks described
above. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $31.9 million in construction loans.

1-4 Family Residential -

The Company offers a variety of mortgage loan products. The Company’s loans collateralized by one-to-
four family residential real estate generally are originated in amounts of no more than 90% of the lower of cost or
appraised value. The Company generally requires mortgage title insurance and hazard insurance in the amount of
the-loan. Of the mortgages originated, the Company generally retains mortgage loans with short terms or variable
rates and sells longer-term fixed-rate loans that do not meet the Company’s credit underwriting standards. Prior to
the acquisition of First American in September 1999, the Company sold such loans to Texas Independent Bank
Mortgage Company; however, since the First Amencan acquisition, the Company sells these loans directly into the
secondary market.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s one-to-four family residential real estate loan portfolio
(including $1.7 million in loans held for sale) was $147.6 miltion. Of this amount, $54.7 million is repriceable in
one year or less and an additional $86.0 million is repriceable from one year to five years. These high percentages
in short-term real estate loans are an effort by the Company to reduce its interest rate risk.

Consumer -

The Company provides a wide variety of consumer loans including motor vehicle, watercraft, education
loans, personal loans (collateralized and uncollateralized) and deposit account collateralized loans. The terms of
these loans typically range from 12 to 60 months and vary based upon the nature of collateral and size of loan.
Consumer loans entail greater risk than do residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of consumer loans that
are unsecured or secured by rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles. In such cases, any repossessed
collateral for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan
balance. The remaining deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower
beyond obtaining a deficiency judgment. In addition, consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrower's
continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, divorce, illness or
personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws may limit the amount that can
be recovered on such loans. During the last several years, management has placed tighter controls on consumer
credit due to the high degree of personal ‘bankruptcy ﬁlmgs nationwide. At December 31, 2004, the Company had
$28.8 million in consumer loans.

Agriculture”
The Company provides agricultural loans for short‘-termvcrop production, including cotton, milo and corn,
farm equipment, cattle and agricultural real estate financing. The Company evaluates agricultural borrowers

primarily based on their historical profitability, level of experience in their particular agricultural industry, overall
financial capacity and the availability of secondary collateral to withstand economic and natural variations common
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to the industry. Because agricultural loans present a higher level of risk associated with events caused by nature, and
the volatility of the world market prices on commodities, the Company routinely makes on-site visits, inspections,
and utilizes government guaranteed programs in order to monitor, identify and manage such risks. The Company
had $11.0 million in agriculture loans at December 31, 2004. '

The Company rarely makes loans at its legal lending limit. Lending officers are assigned various levels of
loan approval authority based upon their respective levels of experience and expertise. All loans above $700,000 are
evaluated and acted upon by the Executive Committee, which meets weekly. All new and renewed loans greater
than $100,000 are reported monthly to the Board of Directors. All new and renewed loans of $400,000 or less are
reported weekly to the Executive Committee. The Company’s strategy for approving or disapproving loans is to
follow conservative loan policies and underwriting practices which include: (i) granting loans on a sound and
collectible basis; (ii) investing funds properly for the benefit of shareholders and the protection of depositors; (iii)
serving the legitimate needs of the community and the Company's general market area while obtaining a balance
between maximum yield and minimum risk; (iv) ensuring that primary and secondary sources of repayment are
adequate in relation to the amount of the loan; (v) developing and maintaining adequate diversification of the loan
portfolio as a whole and of the loans within each category; and (vi) ensuring that each loan is properly documented
and, if appropriate, insurance coverage is adequate. The Company's loan review and compliance personnel interact
daily with commercial and consumer lenders to identify potential underwriting or technical exception variances. In
addition, the Company has placed increased emphasis on the early identification of problem loans to aggressively
seek resolution of the simations and thereby keep loan losses at a minimum.

The contractual maturity ranges of the commercial, agriculture, commercial real estate and construction and

land development loan portfolios and the amount of such loans with predetermined and floating interest rates in each
maturity range as of December 31, 2004, are summarized in the following table:

December 31, 2004

After One
One Year, Through After
or Less Five Years Five Years Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial : . $ 40,833 % 16,525  § 4244 § 61,602
Agriculture ' 7,026 3,502 435 10,963
Construction and land development 23,209 ) 6,426 2,282 31,917
Commercial real estate 14,079 38,525 22,579 75,183

Total N $ 85,147 § 64,978 § 29,540 § 179,665
Loans with a predetermined interest rate . ‘ ) $ 51,742 §$ 52,107 $ 10,056 $ 113,905
Loans with a floating interest rate 33,405 _ 12,871 19,434 65,760

Total g 85,147  § 64,978 § 29,540  § 179,665
Nonperforming Assets

The Company has several procedures in place to assist it in maintaining the overall quality of its loan
portfolio. The Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and also monitors its
delinquency levels for any negative or adverse trends. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company's loan
portfolio will not become subject to increasing pressures from deteriorating borrower credit due to general economic
conditions. 4

Nonperforming assets at December 31, 2004, increased $964,000, or 29.2%, to $4.3 million compared with
$3.3 million at December 31, 2003. This increase reflects the addition of four lines of credit into non-accrual status.
Although liquidation or payoff of all four lines of credit is anticipated within the next 12 months, reserves have been
established for any anticipated exposure. Other real estate decreased from $743,000 as of December 31, 2003 to
$692,000 as of December 31, 2004. The decrease is primarily attributed to the partial sale of collateral on one
relationship. Continued aggressive collection efforts throughout the Company resulted in a minimal increase in

31




accruing loans 90 days or more past due. The ratios of nonperforming assets. to total loans plus other real estate
were 1.13% and 0.90% for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company generally places a loan on nonaccrual status and ceases to accrue interest when loan payment
performance is deemed unsatisfactory. Loans where the interest payments jeopardize the collection of principal are
placed on nonaccrual status, unless the loan is both well secured and in the process of collection. Cash payments
received while a loan is classified as nonaccrual are recorded as a reduction of principal as long as doubt exists as to
collection. If interest on nonaccrual loans had been accrued, such income would have been approximately $353,000,
$214,000 and $310,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company is sometimes required to revise a
loan's interest rate or repayment terms in a troubled debt restructuring; however, the Company had no restructured
loans or additional nonperforming interest-earning assets at December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 or 2000. In
addition to regulatory examinations, the Company maintains an internal loan review staff and retains IBS on a semi-
annual basis to evaluate the loan portfolio.

The Company considers a loan to be impaired based on current information and events, if it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. The measurement of impaired loans is based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate or the loan's observable market price or
based on the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent.

The Company maintains current appraisals on loans secured by real estate, particularly those categorized as

. nonperforming loans and potential problem loans. In instances where updated appraisals reflect reduced collateral

values, an evaluation of the borrower's overall financial condition is made to determine the need, if any, for possible

write-downs or appropriate additions to the allowance for loan losses. The Company records other real estate at the

lower of its fair market value, minus estimated costs to sell the property, or the recorded investment in the loan on
the date of transfer. '

The following table presents information regarding past due loans and nonperforming assets at the dates
indicated: ‘ '

December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
Nonaccrual loans . $ 3,011 $ 2,072 $ 2,810 $ 3,737 $ 1,214
" Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 565 489 404 1,912 3,488
Other real estate 692 743 1,111 562 274
"fotal nonperforming assets $ 4,268 $ 3,304 $ 4,325 $ 6,211 $ 4976
Nonperforming assets to total loans and )
other real estate - 1.13% 0.90%  1.18% 1.87% 1.73%

Allowance for Loan Losses

* The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through charges to earnings in the form of a provision -
for loan losses. Management has established an allowance for loan losses, which it believes is adequate to absorb
estimated losses in the Company's loan portfolio. Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, management presents
a quarterly review of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses to the Company’s Board of Directors. In making
its evaluation, management considers the diversification by industry of the Company's commercial loan portfolio,
the effect of changes in the local real estate market on collateral values, the results of recent regulatory
examinations, the effects on the loan portfolio of current economic indicators and their probable impact on
borrowers, the amount of charge-offs for the period, the amount of nonperforming loans and related collateral

* security, the results of management’s internal loan review, its own peer group analysis and the evaluation of its loan
portfolio through a semi-annual external loan review conducted by IBS. Charge-offs occur when loans are deemed
to be uncollectible. ' o
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The Company follows an ‘internal loan review program to evaluate the credit risk in the loan portfolio.
Through the loan review process, the Company maintains an internally classified loan list, which, along with the
delinquency list of loans, helps management assess the overall quality of the loan portfolio and the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses. Loans internally classified as “special mention™ are those that contain a weakness that, if
left unattended, could develop into'a problem affecting the ultimate collectibility of the loan. Loans internally
classified as “substandard” are those loans with clear and defined weaknesses such as highly leveraged positions,
unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repayment sources or poor financial condition, which may jeopardize
recoverability of the loan. Loans internally classified as “doubtful” are those loans that have characteristics similar
to substandard loans, but also have an increased risk that a loss may occur or at least a portion of the loan may
require a charge-off if liquidated at present. Although loans classified as substandard do not duplicate loans
classified as doubtful, both substandard and doubtful loans may include some loans that are past due at least 90 days,
are on nonaccrual status or have been restructured. Loans internally classified as “loss™ are those loans that are in
the process of being charged off. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $10.9 million of internally classified
loans compared with $9.0 million at December 31, 2003, an increase of $1.9 million, or 21.1%. This increase is
primarily due to the classification of nine loan relationships, totaling $4.0 million which is partially offset by the

- improvement, workout, or foreclosure of 11 loan relationships totaling $2.0 million. One of the lines of credit added
to classified loans totals $1.7 million and has collateral values sufficient to insure minimal exposure for the
Company. Specific reserves have been established for these new lines based on their estimated exposure using
liquidation values for collateral. : ‘

In order to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, the Company establishes both specific
and general reserves. The Company establishes specific allocations for the majority of problem loans based on the
estimated exposure in each individual loan. The exposure is generally identified by determining the present value of
estimated future cash flows or the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. The
Company establishes general reserves for non-problem loans primarily based on its historical loan loss experience,
the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, regulatory policies,
generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, and other factors related to the collectability
of loans in the Company’s loan portfolios.

Loans are charged-off against the allowance for loan losses when appropriate. Although management
believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb estimated {osses in the Company's loan portfolio,
the amount of the allowance is based on management's judgment and future adjustments may be necessary if
economic or other conditions differ from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations.
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The following table presents, for the periods indicated, an analysis of the allowance for loan losses and
other related data: ' : ‘ ‘

Years Ended December 31,
2004 12003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)

Average loans QUtStaﬂding : $ 371,586 $ 359,829 $ 342,823 $ 302,656 $ 267,996
Gross loans outstanding at end of period $ 377,334 $ 365514 $ 365615 $ 331,254 $ 287335
Allowance for loan losses at beginning )

of period $ 3,906 $ 3,692 § 3346 % 2578 $ 2,491
Provision for loan losses 930 1,075 1,260 1,385 595
Charge-offs: -

Commercial (247) (592) (279) (462) : (360)

Real estate (274) (38) (375) (162) C(146)

Consumer : (286) (293) (418) (211) (172)
Recoveries:

Commercial . . 17 9 28 30 80

Real estate 67 12 57 : 124 11

Consumer ' ' ‘ © 41 41 73 64 79
Net charge-offs ’ . (682) ' (861) (914) 617) (508)
Allowance for loan losses at end of period $ 4,154 $ 3,906 $ 3,692 3 3,346 $ 2,578

Ratio of allowance to end of

period loans 1.10% 1.07% - 1.01% 1.01% 0.90%
Ratio of net charge-offs to o ‘ ' ‘ R

average loans 0.18% 024%  027% 0.20%. 0.19%
Ratio of allowance to end of period . ' : . :

nonperforming loans : 116.16% 152.52% - 114.87% 59.23% 54.83%
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The following tables describe the allocation of the allowance for loan losses among various categories of
loans and certain other information for the dates indicated. The allocation is made for analytical purposes and is not
necessarily indicative of the categories in which future losses may occur. The total allowance is available to absorb

losses from any segment of loans.

December 31,
2004 2003
Percent of Percent of
’ Loans to Loans to
Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance of allowance for loan losses applicable to: '
Commercial and agriculture ) . $ 478 19.24% § ' 1,737 17.91%
Real estate: N ‘ ‘
Construction and land development - 2 8.46 - 6.02
1-4 family residential 613 39.12 131 37.74
Commercial » 248 19.92 . 192 21.88
Farmland ‘ 5 429 - 5.54
Multi-family residential . 134 . 2.55
Consumer o 114 7.63 301 8.36
Unallocated 2,694 - 1,545 -
Total allowance for loan losses . $ 4,154 100.00% 3 3,906 100.00%
)] The percentage of loans to total loans includes loans held for sale.
December 31, )
2002 2001 2000
Percent of Percent of Percent of
" Loans to Loans to Loans to
Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance of allowance for loan losses

applicable to:

Commercial and agriculture $ 1,892 18.78% $ 1,792 22.71% $ 1430 26.07%
Real estate:

Construction and land development - 3.83 - 2.87 - 2.55
1-4 family residential M 138 39.63 117 38.07 139 35.71
Commercial 173 22.33 138 2058 193 2131
Farmland - 4.04 - 2.96 - 2.69
Multi-family residential - 2.54 - 2.81 - 1.72

Consumer 320 8.85 333 10.00 289 9.95
Unallocated 1,169 - 966 - 527 -
Total allowance for loan losses $ 3,692 100.00% $ 3,346 10000% $ 2,578 100.00%

(1) The percentage of loans to total loans includes loans held for sale.
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Securities

The Company uses its securities portfolio to ensure liquidity for cash requirements, to manage interest rate
risk, to provide a source of income, to ensure collateral is available for municipal pledging requirements and to
manage asset quality. At December 31, 2004, investment securities totaled $103.8 million, an increase of $4.1
million from $99.6 million at December 31, 2003. The increase was primarily attributable to $36.1 million in
securities purchased partlally offset by $31 0-million in securities sold and in principal repayments. The net
unrealized gain in the securities portfolio at December 31, 2004 was $400,000 compared with $704,000 at
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004, securities represented 19.1% of total assets compared to 19.3% of total
assets at December 31, 2003. The average yield on the securities portfolio for 2004 was 3.86% compared to an
average yield of 3.64% for 2003 and 5.05% for 2002. ’ ‘

During 2004 the securities portfolio mix changed within various categorles U.S. Government securities
decreased from $7.2 million at December 31, 2003 to $6.2 million at December 31, 2004. The Company also had a
decrease of $4.4 million in mortgage-backed securities from $87.2 million at December 31,2003 to $82.9 million at
December 31, 2004. The Company’s investments in equity securities increased from $3.9 million at December 31,
2003 to $4.1 million at December 31, 2004, an increase of $198,000 or 5.1%. Investments in obligations of state
and political subdivisions increased from $1.3 m1111on at December 31, 2003 to $10.6 million at December 31, 2004,
an increase of $9.4 million.

The following table summarizes the fair value of securities classified as available for sale held by the
Company as of the dates shown. At these dates, there were no securities classified as held to maturity.

December 31,

2004 2003 2002+
(Dollars in thousands)

U.S. government agency securities S 6,159 S 7,194 $ 14,127
Mortgage-backed securities _ 82,861 87,248 63,148
Collaterized mortgage obligations.. . A . - - 25,280

. Equity sectrities - . - o AU 4,100. C 390 3,165
Obligations of state and political subdivisions 10,631 1,270 1,272
Total securities ' $ 103,751  § 99,614 § 106,992
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The following table summarizes the contractual maturity of securities available for sale based on. fair value
and their weighted average yields as of December 31, 2004. For purposes of this table, tax-exempt obligations are

not computed on a tax-equivalent basis:

December 31, 2004

After One

After Five
Within Year but Within Years but Within
One Year Five Years Ten Years After Ten Years Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
' (Dollars in thousands)
U.S. Government ) ‘ O
securities s . % 5 6159 3.47% 8 L % s - % s 6159 347%
Mortgage-backed . ’
securities 26,969 391 55,892 438 82,861 425
Equity securities 4,100, 1.8 4,100 1.88
Obligations of state and ] ) ) v . . ‘
political subdivisions 120 a2 4950 325 419 3481368 3.42 10,631 338
Total $ .. 120 421% 5 11,109 338% § 31,165 :3.85% 8§ . 61,357 4.19% § 103,751 4.02%

— e St —— et et Sttt r—eeer e St e s

The Company classifies debt and equity securities at the date of purchase into one of two categories: held-
to-maturity or available-for-sale. At each reporting date, the appropriateness of the classification is reassessed.
Investments in debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity and measured at amortized cost in thé financial
statements only if management has the positive intent and ability to hold thodse securities to maturity. Investments
not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and measured at fair value in the financial
statements with unrealized gains and losses reported, net of tax, in a separate component of shareholders' equity
until realized. The Company had no securities classified as held-to-maturity at December 31, 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Mortgage-backed securities .and collateralized mortgage. obligations are securities, which have been
developed by pooling a number of real éstate mortgages and are principally issued by or guaranteed by federal
agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddié Mac). These securities aré deemed to have high credit ratings and regular monthly cash flows
of principal and interest, which are guaranteed by the issuing agencies. All the Company's rnortgage -backed
securities at December 31, 2004 were agency 1ssued collateral obligations.

At December 31, 2004, 67.5% of the mortgage-backed securities held by the Company had final maturities
of more than 10 years. However, unlike U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agency securities, which have a lump
sum payment at maturity, mortgage-backed securities provide cash flows from regular principal and.interest
payments and principal prepayments throughout the lives of the securities. Therefore, the average life, or the
average amount of time until the Company receives the total amount invested, of the mortgage-backed security will
be shorter than the contractual maturity. The Company estimates the remaining average life of the fixed-rate
mortgage-backed security portfolio to be less than three years. These securities, when purchased at a premlum will
generally suffer decreasing net yields as interest rates drop because homeowners tend to refinance their mortgages.’
Thus, the premium paid must be amortized over a shorter period. Therefore, securities when purchased at a discount
will obtain higher net yields in a decreasing interest rate environment. As interest rates rise, the opposite will
generally be true. During a period of increasing interest rates, fixed rate mortgage-backed securities do not tend to
experience heavy prepayments of principal and consequently, the average lives of these securities will not be unduly
shortened.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment tbfaled $13.5 million at December 31, 2004 and $13.2 million at December 31,
2003. The net change reflects an increase of $288,000, or 2.2% in fixed assets. The increase is primarily due to the
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opening and beginning of construction of the new Texarkana West and Mount Vernon locations, partially offset by
depreciation recorded for the year.

Other Assels

The Company owns single premium insurance policies insuring the lives of certain key senior officers. The
net cash surrender value of these polices totaled $5.3 million at December 31, 2004 and $6.2 million at December
31, 2003.

Deposits

The Company’s lending and investing activities are funded primarily by deposits. The Company offers a
variety of deposit accounts having a wide range of interest rates and terms. The Company's deposit accounts consist
of demand, savings, money market and time accounts. The Company relies primarily on competitive pricing policies
and customer service to attract and retain these deposits. The Company does not have or accept any brokered

deposits.

Total deposits increased to $433.7 million at December 31, 2004, from $407.8 million at December 31,
2003, an increase of $25.9 million, or 6.3%. Noninterest-bearing deposits increased from $72.2 million at
December 31, 2003, to $82.3 million at December 31, 2004, an increase of $10.1 million, or 14.0%. Savings and
money market accounts increased $8.7 million, or 11.6%, to $84.1 million at December 31, 2004 from $75.3 million
at December 31, 2003. NOW accounts increased from $44.4 million at December 31, 2003 to $50.1 million at
December 31, 2004, an increase of $5.7 million, or 12.7%. The Company’s ratio of average noninterest-bearing
demand deposits to average total deposits for years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, were 18.3%, 16.3%,
and 15.7%, respectively.

The daily average balances and weighted average rates paid on deposits for each of the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 202
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
. . (Dollars in thousands)

Savings ag:count§ $ 15821 053% § 14,781 0.69% § 11,774 1.44%
NOwW accbunts ) . 45,615 0.86 43,781 0.71 35,740 1.04
Money market accounts 63,481 - 116 . 62877 0.84 61,150 . 1.58
Time deposits less than $100,000 131,300 1.99 130,770 : 2.64 132,800 3.53.
Time deposits $100,000 and over 87,537 2.57 102,206 2.79 98,396 3.70
Total interest-bearing deposits $ 343,754 1.77%  $ 354415 . 2.04% § 339,860 2.89%
Noninterest-bearing deposits - 76,838 - 68,868 - 63,265 -
Total deposits ‘ $ 420,592 144% § 423283 1.71% $§ 403,125 2.44%

The following table sets forth the amount of the Company's time deposits $100, 000 and over at December
31, 2004 by time remaining until maturity:

December 31, 2004
_ (Dollars in thousands)
3 months or less ‘ $ 16,364
Over 3 months through 6 months 11,230
Over 6 months through 1 year 42,074
Over | year ‘ 22,631

Total $ 92,299
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Other Borrowings

The. Company. utilizes borrowing.to supplement deposits to fund its lending and investing activities.
Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") advances may be utilized from time to time as either a short-term funding
source or a longer-term funding source.. FHLB advances can be particularly attractive as a longer-term funding
source to balance interest rate sensitivity and reduce interest rate risk. . The. Company is eligible for two borrowing
programs through the FHLB. The first, called "Short Term. Fixed," requires delivery of eligible securities for
collateral. Maturities under this program range from 1-35 days. The Company does not currently have any
borrowings under this program. As of December 31, 2004, the: Company does not have any of its investment
securities in safekeeping at the FHLB. .

The second borrowing program, the "Blanket Borrowing Program," is under a borrowing agreement which
does not require the delivery of specific collateral. Borrowings are limited by the level of qualified pledgable real
estate loans held and FHLB stock owned. At December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $54.6 million
borrowed out of a potential $109.5 million available under this program, leaving approximately $54.9 million in
available borrowings.

In March 2000, the Company formed Guaranty (TX) Capital Trust I ("Trust I") and on March 23, 2000,
Trust I issued $7.0 million (7,000 shares with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) of 10.875% Fixed Rate
Capital Trust Pass-through Securities (“TruPS I”) to a third party in a private placement. Concurrent with the
issuance of the TruPS I, Trust I issued common securities to the Company in the aggregate liquidation value of
$217,000. Trust I invested the total proceeds from the sale of the TruPS I and the common securities in $7.2 million
of the Company's 10.875% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (the “Debentures 17). The
Debentures I will mature on March 8, 2030, which date may be shortened to a date not earlier than March 8, 2010, if
certain conditions are met (including the Company having received prior approval of the Federal Reserve and any
other required regulatory approvals). The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures I were used to repurchase
shares of the Company’s stock, provide a $1.5 million additional capital contribution to the Bank and provide for
additional working capital to support growth.

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the Debentures
I are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company. The
terms of the Debentures I are such that they qualify as Tier 1 capital under the Federal Reserve’s regulatory capital
guidelines applicable to bank holding companies. Interest on the Debentures I is payable semi-annually on March §
and September 8 of each year. The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to five consecutive years
following a suspension of dividend payments on all other capital stock. No principal payments are due until
maturlty on March &, 2030.

On any March 8 or September 8 on or after March 8, 2010 and prior to maturity, the Debentures I are
redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, on at least 30 but not more than 60 days notice, in whole or in
part, at the redemption prices set forth in the table below, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption:

If Redeemed During Percentage of If Redeeined During Percentage of
12 Months Beginning Principal - ' 12 Months Beginning Principal
March 8, Amount March 8, Amount
2010 105.44% 2016 102.18%
2011 ‘ 104.89% 2017 . 101.63%
2012 104.35% 2018 101.09%
2013 : 103.81% 2019 100.54%
2014 ' 103.26% ' 2020 and after 100.00%

12015 102.72%

Upon the occurrence of certain special events, the Company will have the right to call the securities at par
at any time with the prior approval of the Federal Reserve and any other required regulatory approvals.
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In October 2002, the Company formed Guaranty (TX) Capital Trust II ("Trust II" and together with Trust I,
the "Trusts") and on October 30, 2002, Trust II issued $3.0 million (3,000 shares with a liquidation amount of
$1.000 per security) of Capital Trust Pass-through Securities (“TruPS II”) to a third party in a private placement.
Concurrent with the issuance of the TruPS II, Trust Il issued common securities to the Company in the aggregate
liquidation value of $93,000. Trust II' invested the total proceeds from the sale of the TruPS II and the common
securities in $3.1 million of the Company's Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (the “Debentures
II"). The Debentures 11 will mature on October 30, 2032, which date may be shortened to a date not earlier than
October 30, 2012, if certain conditions are met (including the Company having received prior approval of the
Federal Reserve and any other required regulatory approvals). The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures 11
were used to repurchase shares of the Company’s stock and provide for additional working capital to support
.growth. :

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the Debentures
IT are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company. The
ferms-of the Debentures I1 are such that they qualify as Tier 1 capital under the Federal Reserve’s regulatory capital
guidelines applicable to bank holding companies. Interest on the Debentures I1 is payable quarterly on January 30,
April 30, July 30. and October 30 of each year at a fixed rate per annum equal to 7.94% until October 2012 and a
variable rate per annum, reset quarterly, equal to 3 month LIBOR plus 3.35%, thereafter. The interest is deferrable
on a cumulative basis for up.to five consecutive years following a suspension of dividend payments on all other
capital stock. No principal payments are due until maturity on October 30, 2032,

On any interest payment date on or after October 30, 2012 and prior to maturity date, the Debentures 11 are
redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, on at least 30 but not more than 60 days notice, in whole or in
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

© On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted FIN46R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 31 (Revised December 2003). Upon adoption, the subsidiary
trusts that previously issued the outstanding TruPS were deconsolidated from the Company's consolidated financial
statements. Instead, the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to these subsidiary trusts are shown
as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense associated with the junior subordinated
debentures is shown in the consolidated statements of earnings. As a result, the Company's consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 reflect the adoption of FIN46R and include $10.3
million in junior subordinated debentures. The Company's consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2003 and for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 do not reflect the adoption of FIN46R and include $10.0
million in long-term debt, giving effect to the consolidation elimination of the $310,000 common ownership interest.
" The overall impact of this deconsolidation did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth the Company’s future cash payments associated with its contractual

obligations (other than deposit obligations) by maturity period as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

Payments due by period
After One but  After Three but

Within Within Within After
One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total
Junior subordinated debentures $ - S - 3 - 8 10,310  § 10,310
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 16,742 30,099 7,379 333 -~ 54,553
Total $ 16742 _S 30099 8 7379 8 10643 3 64,863
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Capital Resources and Liquidity

The Company’s capital management consists of providing equity to support both current and future
operations. The Company is subject to capital adequacy requirements imposed by the Federal Reserve and the Bank
is subject to capital adequacy requirements imposed by the FDIC and the TDB. Both the Federal Reserve and the
FDIC have adopted risk-based capital requirements for assessing bank holding company and bank capital adequacy.
These standards define capital and establish minimum capital requirements in relation to assets and off-balance sheet
exposure, adjusted for credit risk. The risk-based capital standards currently in effect are designed to make
regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among bank holding companies and
banks, to account for off-balance sheet exposure and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Assets and
off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each with appropriate relative risk weights. The
resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items.

The risk-based capital standards issued by the Federal Reserve require all bank holding companies to have
"Tier 1 capital” of at least 4.0% and "total risk-based" capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) of at least 8.0% of total risk-
adjusted assets. "Tier 1 capital" generally includes common shareholders' equity and qualifying perpetual preferred
stock together with related surpluses and retained earnings, less deductions for goodwill and various other
intangibles. "Tier 2 capital” may consist of a limited amount of intermediate-term preferred stock, a limited amount
of term subordinated debt, certain hybrid capital instruments and other debt securities, perpetual preferred stock not
qualifying as Tier 1 capital, and a limited amount of the general valuation allowance for loan losses. The sum of
Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital is "total risk-based capital”.

The Federal Reserve has also adopted guidelines which supplement the risk-based capital guidelines with a
minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to average total consolidated assets ("leverage ratio") of 3.0% for certain institutions
with well diversified risk, including no undue interest rate exposure; excellent asset quality; high liquidity; good
earnings; and that are generally considered to be strong banking organizations, rated composite 1 under applicable
federal guidelines, and that are not experiencing or anticipating significant growth. Other banking organizations are
required to maintain a leverage ratio of at least 4.0% to 5.0%. These rules further provide that banking
organizations experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected to maintain capital positions
substantially above the minimum supervisory levels and comparable to peer group averages, without significant
reliance on intangible assets.

Pursuant to FDICIA, each federal banking agency revised its risk-based capital standards to ensure that
those standards take adequate account of interest rate risk, concentration of credit risk and the risks of nontraditional
activities, as well as reflect the actual performance and expected risk of loss on multi-family mortgages. The Bank is
subject to capital adequacy guidelines of the FDIC that are substantially similar to the Federal Reserve's guidelines.
Also pursuant to FDICIA, the FDIC has promulgated regulations setting the levels at which an insured institution
such as the Bank would be considered "well capitalized,” ”adequately capitalized," "undercapitalized,” "significantly
undercapitalized” and "critically undercapitalized." The Bank is classified "well capitalized" for purposes of the
FDIC's prompt corrective action regulations. '

Shareholders' equity increased to $38.6 million at December 31, 2004, from $36.4 million at December 31,
2003, an increase of $2.2 million, or 6.0%. This increase was primarily the result of net earnings of $3.7 million,
partially offset by the payment of common stock dividends of $1.2 million, the decrease in net unrealized gain on
available for sale securities of $200,000 and the purchase of treasury stock of $225,000.
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The following table provides a comparison of the Company's and the Bank's leverage and risk-weighted
capital ratios as of December 31, 2004 to the minimum and well-capitalized regulatory standards:

Minimum Required For To Be Well Capitalized Under Actual Ratio at

Capital Adequacy Purposes Prompt Corrective Action Provisions - December 31, 2004

The Company ‘ .

Leverage ratio 4.00% N/A 8.73%

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.00% ' N/A 12.52%

Risk-based capital ratio 8.00% N/A : 13.65%
The Bank

Leverage ratio 3.00% @ N - 5.00% ©7.74%

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.00% 6.00% 11.11%

Risk-based capital ratio 8.00% 10.00% ) 12.25%

Y The Federal Reserve may require the Company to maintain a leverage ratio above the required minimum.
“ The FDIC may require the Bank to maintain a leverage ratio above the required minimum.

At December 31, 2004, the Company's capital ratios exceeded the minimums required by regulatory
guidelines. The junior subordinated debentures issued by the trusts are currently included in the Company’s Tier 1
capital for regulatory purposes. However, because the debentures are no longer a part of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, the Federal Reserve may in the future disallow inclusion of the junior
subordinated debentures in Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes.

On May 6, 2004, the Federal Reserve issued proposed rules that would continue to allow junior subordinated
debentures to be included in Tier 1 capital, subject to stricter quantitative and qualitative limits. Currently, junior
subordinated debentures and qualifying perpetual preferred stock are limited in the aggregate to no more than 25% of a
bank holding company's core capital elements. The proposed rule would amend the existing limit by providing that
restricted core capital elements (inctuding junior subordinated debentures and qualifying perpetual preferred stock) can’
be no more than 25% of core capital, net of goodwill. Because the 25% limit currently is calculated without deducting -
goodwill, the proposal has the effect of reducing the amount of junior subordinated debentures that the Company can
include in Tier 1 capital. In addition, under the proposal, the amount of such excess junior subordinated debentures
(when aggregated with subordinated debt securities and certain other investments) includable in Tier 2 capital would be
limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. Assuming these proposed rules were effective at December 31, 2004, there would not
be any change to the Company's capital ratios. The new quantitative limits, if adopted in the form proposed, will be
fully effective March 31, 2007.

Each of the trusts issued junior subordinated debentures with 30-year maturity. The proposed rules provide
that in the last five years before the junior subordinated debentures mature, the associated debentures will be excluded
from Tier 1 capital -and included in Tier 2 capital, subject (together with subordinated debt and certain other
investments) to an aggregate limit of 50% of Tier 1 capital. In addition, under the proposal, the debentures during this
five-year period would be amortized out of Tier 2 capital by one-fifth each year and excluded from Tier 2 capital
completely during the year prior to their maturity. .

Liquidity involves the Company's ability to raise funds to support asset growth or reduce assets to meet
deposit withdrawals and other payment obligations, to maintain reserve requirements and otherwise to operate the
Company on an ongoing basis. The Company's liquidity needs are met primarily by financing activities, which
consists mainly of growth in core deposits, supplemented by investment securities and earnings through operating
activities. Access to purchased funds from correspondent banks is available and has been utilized on occasion to
take advantage of investment opportunities. The cash and federal funds sold position, supplemented by amortizing
investments along with payments and maturities within the loan portfolio, have historically created an adequate
- liguidity position.

The Company's liquidity management objective is to meet maturing debt obligations, fund loan

commitments and deposit withdrawals, and manage operations on a cost effective basis. Management believes that
sufficient resources are available to meet the Company's liquidity objective through its debt maturity structure,
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holdings of liquid assets, and access to the capital markets through a variety of funding vehicles. Proper liquidity
management is crucial to ensure that the Company is able to take advantage of new business opportunities as well as
meet the demands of its customers.

The Company's traditional funding sources consist primarily of core deposits, established federal funds and
other borrowing lines with major banks, proceeds from matured investments, contracts to repurchase investment
securities and principal and interest repayments on loans.

Management is not aware of any events that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company's liquidity, capital resources or operations. In addition, management is not aware of any regulatory
recommendations regarding liquidity, which if implemented, would have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Off-Balance Sheer Arrangements

The Company enters into contractual commitments to extend credit, normally with fixed expiration dates or
termination clauses, at specified rates and for specific purposes. Customers use credit commitments to ensure that
funds will be available for working capital purposes, for capital expenditures and to ensure access to funds at
specified terms and conditions. Substantially all of the Company’s commitments to extend credit are contingent
upon customers maintaining specific credit standards at the time of loan funding. Management assesses the credit
risk associated with certain commitments to extend credit in determining the level of the allowance for loan losses.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The Company’s policies generally require that letters of credit arrangements contain
security and debt covenants similar to those contained in loan agreements. In the event the customer does not
petform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party, the Company would be required to fund
the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make is
represented by the contractual amount shown in the table below. If the commitment were funded, the Company
would ‘be entitled to seek recovery from the customer. As of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, no
amounts have been recorded as liabilities for the Bank’s potential obligations under these guarantees.

- The Company’s commitments associated with outstanding letters of credit and commitments to extend
credit as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized below. Since commitments associated with letters of
credit and commitments to extend credit may explre unused, the amounts shown do not necessarily reflect the actual
future cash funding requirements:

Contract or
Notional Amount
December 31,

2004 - 2003

v (Dollars in thousands)
Commitments to extend credit $ 29,166 $ 23,878
Letters of credit C 1,416 - 1,491

Industry Segments

" The principal business of the Company is- overseeing the business of the Bank. The Company has no
significant assets other than its investment m the Bank; therefore, the bankmg operatlon is the Company’s only
repoﬁable segment
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) published FASB Statement No.
123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123(R)” or the “Statement”). FAS 123(R) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions, including grants of employee stock options, be
recognized in financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability
instruments issued. FAS 123(R) permits the use of any option-pricing model that meets the fair value objective in
the statement. Modifications of share-based payments will be treated as replacement awards with the cost of the
incremental value recorded in the financial statements. The Company elected to transition to the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation during 2002 using the modified prospective method as prescribed by
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” an amendment of FAS
123(R). The Statement is effective at the beginning of the third quarter of 2005. The adoption of this staterment will
not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

_ FIN No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, establishes accounting guidance for consolidation of variable interest entities (VIE) that function to support
the activities of the primary beneficiary. Prior to the implementation of FIN 46, VIEs were generally consolidated
by an enterprise when the enterprise had a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority of voting
interest in the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 were effective immediately for all arrangements entered into after
January 31, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN 46, (FIN 46R) which clarified certain
implementation issues and revised implementation dates for VIE’s created before January 31, 2003. Under the new
guidance; special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or partially applied FIN 46 prior to
issuance of the revised Interpretation. Otherwise, application of FIN 46R (or FIN 46) is required in financial
statements of public entities that have interests in special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15,
2003. Application by public entities, other than small business issuers, for all other types of VIEs is required in
financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The Company deconsolidated the trusts created upon
the issuance of the junior subordinated debentures as of March 31, 2004. In May 2004, the Federal Reserve released
proposed rules for the capital treatment of junior subordinated debentures. The proposed rules would limit the
aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures and certain other capital elements to 25% of core capital, net of
goodwill. Because the Company’s aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures is below the limit of 25% of
Tier I capital, net of goodwill, the proposal has no effect on the amount of junior subordinated debentures that the
Company can include in Tier [ capital. Additionally, the rules provide that junior subordinated debentures no longer
quahfy for Tier I capital within five years of their maturity.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants issued Statement of Position 03-
3, “Accounting for. Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer” (“SOP 03-3”). SOP 03-3 requires
loans acquired through a transfer, such as a business combination, where there are differences in expected cash
flows and contractual cash flows due in part to credit quality, to be recognized at their fair value. Under the
provisions of SOP 03-3 any future excess of cash flows over the original expected cash flows is to be recognized as
an adjustment of future yield. Future decreases in actual cash flow compared to the original expected cash flow is
recognized as a valuation allowance and expensed immediately. Under SOP 03-3, valuation allowances cannot be
created or “carried over” in the initial accounting for impaired loans acquired. SOP 03-3 is effective for impaired
loans acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004. The Company does not expect adoption to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

- In March 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) reached consensus on the guidance
provided by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its
Application to Certain Investments” (“EITF 03-17). The guidance is applicable to debt and equity securities that are
within the scope of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and certain other investments. EITF 03-1 specifics that an impairment
would be considered other-than-temporary unless (a) the investor has the ability and intent to hold an investment for
a reasonable period of time sufficient for the recovery of the fair value up to (or beyond) the cost of the investment
and (b) evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable within a reasonable period of time outweighs
evidence to the contrary. EITF 03-1 cost method investment and disclosure provisions are effective for reporting
periods ending after June 15, 2004. The measurement and recognition provisions relating to debt and equity
securities have been delayed until the FASB issues additional guidance. The implementation of this provision did
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not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company. ,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company's Asset Liability and Funds Management Policy provides management with the necessary
guidelines for effective funds management, and the Company has established a measurement system for monitoring
its net interest rate sensitivity position. The Company manages its sensitivity position within established guidelines.

As a financial institution, the Company’s primary component of market risk is interest rate volatility.
Interest rate risk is the potential of economic losses due to future interest rate changes. These economic losses can
be reflected as a loss of future net interest income and/or a loss of current fair market values. The objective is to
measure the effect on net interest income and to adjust the balance sheet to minimize the inherent risk while at the
same time maximizing income.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is managed by the Asset Liability Committee ("ALCO"),
which is composed of senior officers of the Company, in accordance with policies approved by the Company's
Board of Directors. The ALCO formulates strategies based on appropriate levels in interest rate risk. In
determining the appropriate level of interest rate risk, the ALCO considers the impact on earnings and capital based
on the current outlook on interest rates, potential changes in interest rates, regional economies, liquidity, business
strategies, and other factors. The ALCO meets regularly to review, among other things, the sensitivity of assets and
liabilities to interest rate changes, the book and market values of assets and liabilities, unrealized gains and losses,
purchase and sale activity, commitments to originate loans, and the maturities of investments and borrowings.
Additionally, the ALCO reviews liquidity, cash flow flexibility, maturities of deposits and consumer and
commercial deposit act1v1ty Management uses two methodologies to manage interest rate risk: (i) an analysis of
relationships between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities; and (ii) interest rate shock simulation
models. The Company has traditionally managed its business to reduce its overall exposure to changes in interest
rates, however, under current policies of the Company’s Board of Directors, management has been given some
latitude to increase the Company’s interest rate sensitivity position within certain limits if, in management’s
judgment, it will enhance profitability. As a result, changes in market interest rates may have a greater impact on
the Company’s financial performance in the future than they have had historically.

To effectively measure and manage interest rate risk, the Company uses interest rate shock simulation
models to determine the impact on net interest income under various interest rate scenarios, balance sheet trends and
strategies. . From these simulations, interest rate risk is quantified and appropriate strategies are developed and
1rnp1emented Additionally, duration and market value sensitivity measures are utilized when they provide added
value to the overall interest rate risk management process. The overall interest rate risk position and strategies are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an ongoing basis. The Company manages its exposure to interest
rates by structuring its balance sheet in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not currently enter into
instruments such as leveraged derivatives, structured notes, interest rate swaps, caps, floors, financial options,
financial futures contracts or forward delivery contracts for the purpose of reducing interest rate risk.
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The impact on future net earnings based on interest sensitive assets and liabilities held at December 31,
2004 using the interest rate shock sn’nulanen is as follows

Change in % Change in
Interest Rates Net Earnings
- +300 O 13.72%
L4200 ' 71015
+100 6.75
Base -
- 100 (13.38)
-200 (26.17)
- 300 ' (39.1%)

The computation of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous
assumptions, including relative levels of interest rates, asset prepayments, deposit decay and changes in repricing
levels of deposits to general market rates, and should not be relied upon as indicative of actual results. Further, the
computations do not take into account any actions that the Company may undertake in response to changes in
interest rates.

Ani interest rate sensitive asset or liability is ore that, within a defined time period, either matures or
experiences an interest rate change in line with general market interest rates. The management of interest rate risk is
performed by analyzing the maturity and repricing relationships betiween interést-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities at specific points in time ("GAP") and by analyzing the effects of interest rate changes on net interest
income over specific periods of time by projecting the performance of the mix of assets and liabilities in varied
1nterest rate environments. Interest rate sensitivity reflects the potential effect on net interest income of a movement
in interest rates. A company is considered to be asset sensitive, or having a positive GAP, when the amount of its
interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-bearing
liabilities also 'maturing or repricing within that time period. Conversely, a company is considered to be liability
sensitive, or having a negative GAP, when the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within
a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-earning assets also maturing or repricing within that time period.
During a period of rising interest rates, a negative GAP ‘would tend to affect net interest income adversely, while a
positive GAP would tend to result in an incréase in net interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a
negative GAP would tend to result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive GAP would tend to affect
net interest income adversely. However, it is management’s 1ntent to achieve a proper balance so that incorrect rate -
forecasts should not have a significant impact on earnings.
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The following table sets forth an interest rate sensitivity analysis for the Company at December 31, 2004:

Volumes Subject to Repricing Within

0-30 31-180 181-365 2-3 4-5 Greater than
déys . days ~ days years years § years Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets: .
Intersst-bearing time deposits $ -3 v3,284 $ 1,693 § 7,756 $ 9% § - 8 12,823

Securities ’ ‘ 1,441 7319 8,524 30,199 28,396 27872 103,751
Loans 74,590 74,225 68,081 148,691 4,292 7,455 377,334
Federal funds sold : 9,075 . - - - - 9,075

Total intere_st_—eaming assets ) 85,106 84,828 . 78,298 186,646 32,778 35,327 502,983
Interest-bearing liabilities: :

NOW, money market aﬁd

savings deposits - 134,111 ' - - .- - - 134,111
Certificates of deposit and ) '
other time deposits 9,908 - 54,354 97,937 33,842 21,159 130 217,330
Federal funds purchased . - - - - - - -
FHLB advances = 2,014 7,070 7,658 30,099 7379 333 54,553
Junior subordinated debentures ’ - - - - - 10,310 10,310
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ' 146033 61,424 105,595 63,941 28,538 10,773 416,304
Period GAP $ (60,927 § 23404 §  (27,297) § 122,705 § 4240 § 24,554 § 86,679
Cumulative GAP $ (60,927) $ (37,523) § (64,820) 3 57,885 % 62,325 % 86,679 .
Period GAP to total assets (11.24%) 4.32% (5.04%) 22.64% 0.78% 4.53% 15.35%
Cumulative GAP to total assets (11.24%) {6.92%) (11.96%) 10.68% 11.46% 15.99%

Cumulative interest-earning assets
to cumufative interest-bearing
 liabilities ‘ 58.28% 81.91% 79.29% 115.35% 115.32% 120.82%

The Company's one-year cumulative GAP position at December 31, 2004, was negative $64.8 million or
11.96% of assets. This is a one-day position that is continually changing and is not indicative of the Company's
position at any other time. While the GAP position is a useful tool in measuring interest rate risk and contributes
toward effective asset and liability management, it is difficult to predict the effect of changing interest rates solely
on that measure, without accounting for alterations in the maturity or repricing characteristics of the balance sheet
that occur during changes in matket interest rates. For example, the GAP position reflects only the prepayment
assumptions pertaining to the current rate environment. Assets tend to prepay more rapidly during periods of
declining interest rates than during periods of rising interest rates. Because of this and other risk factors not
contemplated by the GAP position, an institution could have a matched GAP position in the current rate
environment and still have its net interest income exposed to increased rate risk. To better qualify and account for
the variables not incorporated into GAP analysis, the Company utilizes an interest rate simulation model as
discussed previously. The Company maintains a Rate Committee and the ALCO that reviews the Company's
interest rate risk position on a weekly or monthly basis, respectively.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary\ Data

The financial statements, the reports thereon, the notes thereto and supplementary data commence at page
F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Condensed quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as

follows:
QUARTER ENDED 2004
(unaudited)
Dec. 31 ‘ Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Interest income ' $ 7,030 $ 6,787 $ 6,512 % 6,700
Interest expense h 2,509 12,307 ‘ 2,171 2,150

Net interest income i S 4,521 4,480 4341 4,550
Provision for loan losses 250 200 230 - © 250

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4,271 4,280 4,111 : 4,300
Noninterest income ‘ 1,000 1,392 1,235 ‘ 1,228
Noninterest expense ‘ 4,106 4,272 4,090 4,114

Earnings before taxes 1,165 » 1,400 1,256 1,414
Provision for income tax expense 316 462 , 415 382
Net eamings ‘ ' $ 849 °§ 938 § 841 % 1,032
Earnings per common share: » ‘ ’ ‘

Basic $ 029 §- 032 $ 029 § 0.35

Diluted . : 3 029 8§ 1032 8 028 8 0.35

QUARTER ENDED 2003
(unaudited)
Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Interest income ' $ 6,799  $ 6,722 § 7,001 $ 7,042
Interest expense o Co 2229 2413 2,771 2,829

Net interest income ' . - 4,570 4,309 o 4230 4,213
Provision for loan losses . o A , ’ 300 . 250 » 150 375

Net interest income after provision for loan losses ; 4,270 4,059 ' 4,080 3,838
Noninterest income : ‘ - 1,155 1,209 . 1,187 1,386
Noninterest expense , , .o . 3,918 3,963 , 4,004 3,952

Earnings before taxes - : - 1,507 1,305 1,263 1,272
Provision for income tax expense s 418 - 370 478 237
Net earnings % 1,089 % 935 8§ - . 785 % 1,035
Earnings per common share: ' ‘

Basic $ 037§ 032 % 027 % 0.36

Diluted $

037 $ 031 % 027 S 0.35
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Noné
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company conducted an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™)). Based on this
evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports
that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported to the Company’s
management within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Company’s most recent year-end that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None
PART UI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Oﬂfcers of the Registrant

The information under the captions "Election of Directors," "Continuing Directors and Executive Officers"
and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement
relating to its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "2005 Proxy Statement"), which will be filed within 120
days after December 31, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item. '

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conduct Policy that includes a conflict of
interest policy and applies to all directors, officers, and employees. All directors, officers, and employees are
required to affirm annually, in writing, their acceptance of the Policy. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Conduct
Policy is available for review at the Company’s website at www.gnty.com, or by confacting the Company’s
Corporate Secretary. ‘ '

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. has an audit committee. The Audit Committee is comprised of Weldon Miller,
Gene Watson and Carl Johnson, Jr., each of whom is an independent director of the Company as defined in Rule
4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. listing standards. The Board of Directors has determined that Mr.
Johnson has the requisite attributes of an “audit committee financial expert” as defined by SEC regulations and that
such attributes were acquired through relevant education and experience.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
. The information under the caption "Executive Compensation and Other Matters" in the 2005 Proxy

Statement, which will be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this item.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information under the caption "Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock by Management of the
Company and Principal Shareholders” in the 2005 Proxy Statement, which will be filed within 120 days after
December 31, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information under the caption "Interests of Management and Others in Certain Transactions” in the
2005 Proxy Statement, which will be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2004, is incorporated herein by
reference in response to this item.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and Services” in the 2005 Proxy Statement,
which will be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference in response to this
item. ' '

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules
N
Reference is made to the Financial Statements, the reports thereon, the notes thereto and supplementary
data commencing at page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Set forth below is a list of such Financial
Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 '

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

All supplemental schedules are omitted as inapplicable or because the required information is included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

Each exhibit marked with an asterisk is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exhibit Number Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of April 23, 1999 between First American

Financial Corporation and Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-
81881)). . ‘

2.2 First Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization between First American
" Financial Corporation and Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No, 333-

31881)). :
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23

31

o 3.2

4.1

4.2**
10.1+

10.2

21

23*

311

31.2%

32.1%

32.2%

Second Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization between First American
Financial Corporation and Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.3 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-
81881)).

Amended Articles of ‘In‘corporation of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on FormS-1 (Registration
No. 333-48959) (the "Registration Statement")).

A}nended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.2 to the Registration Statement).

Specimen form of certificate evidencing the Common Stock (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement). .

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust — Guaranty (TX) Trust [ - Dated as of March 23,
2000 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s quarterly report Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000 filed on May 15, 2000).

Indenture between Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as trustee, dated as
of October 30, 2002.

Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement).

Amended and Restated Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan with
401(k) Provisions dated December 18, 2001 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31, 2001).

Subsidiaries of Guarénty'Bbancshares, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 21 of
the Company’s Annuval Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith

** This exhibit is not filed herewith because it meets the exclusion set forth in Section
601(b)(4)(i1i)(A) of Regulation S-K and the Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy thereof
to the Commission upon request.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc., has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Mount Pleasant and the State of Texas on March 14, 2005.

GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.

By: /s/ ARTHUR B. SCHARLACH, JR.
' Arthur B. Scharlach, JIr.
Chairman of the Board & Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report or amendment
thereto has been signed by the following persons in the indicated capacities on March 14, 2005.

Signature : Positions
/s/ ARTHUR B. SCHARLACH, JR.

Arthur B. Scharlach, Jr. Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer and Director

/s/_ TYSON T. ABSTON
Tyson T. Abston President and Director

/s/ CLIFTON A. PAYNE
Clifton A. Payne Senior Vice President, Chief
; Financial Officer and Director
(principal financial officer and
principal accounting officer)

/s/ KIRKL. LEE
Kirk L. Lee v Senior Vice President and Director

/s/” JOHNNY CONROY
Johnny Conroy . Director

/s/ JONICE CRANE
Jonice Crane Director

/s/ C. A. HINTON, SR,
C.A. Hinton, Sr. Director

/s/ CARL JOHNSON, JR.
Carl Johnson, Jr. Director

/s/ WELDON MILLER
Weldon Miller Director

/s/ BILL PRIEFERT
Bill Priefert Director .

/sS/ GENE WATSON
Gene Watson Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Guaranty Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes in shareholders' equity and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. :

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidéted financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with
U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP

Dallas, Texas
January 21, 2005
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. GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars-in thousands, except par value)

2004 2003
Assets
Cash and due from banks ' $ 14,949 $ 20,630
Federal funds sold o ' . 9,075 -
Interest-bearing deposits ' " 210 186
Total cash and cash equivalents S 24,234 20,816
Interest-bearing time deposits ‘ ' 12,823 6,776
Securities available for sale - s ‘ ’ 103,751 i 99,614
Loans held for sale 1,749 ) 1,244
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,154 and $3,906 371,431 360,364
Premises and equipment, net 13,471 13,183
Other real estate ' 692 743
Accrued interest receivable : _ 2,794 ' 2,638
Goodwill- : ‘ : ‘ : 2,338 2,338
Cash surrender value of life insurance : = 5,260 6,152
Other assets 3,423 , 3,210
. $ 541,966 $ 517,078
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits : : ‘
- Noninterest-bearing - $ 82,302 $ 72,202
Interest-bearing : 351,441 335,645
Total deposits - 433,743 407,847
" Accrued interest and other liabilities, 4,736 : 5,071
Federal funds purchased C - - 7,295
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 54,553 50,417
Junior subordinated debentures - 10,310 -
Long-term debt - 10,000
Total liabilities 503,342 480,630
'Commit'ment_s and Contingencies - -
Shareholders' equity _
Preferred stock, $5.00 j)ar value, 15,000,000 shares authorized,
no shares issued - : -
Common stock, $1.00 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized,
3,252,016 shares issued : 3,252 3,252
" Additional paid-in capital : 12,882 12,801
Retained earnings ‘ 26,405 23,912
Treasury stock, 339,339 and 330,088 shares at cost - (4,179) (3,981)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 264 464
Total sharcholders’ equity ) ) 38,624 36,44%
$ 541,966 $ 517,078

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2004
Interest income
Loans, including fees $ 22,990 $
Securities 4
Taxable . 3,559
Nontaxable 210
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits 270
Total interest income 27,029
Interest expense
Deposits - , 6,072
FHLB advances and federal funds purchased 2,061
Junior subordinated debentures , 1,004
Long-term debt -
Total interest expense 9,137
Net interest income 17,892
Provision for loan losses - : 930
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 16,962 -
Noninterest income
Service charges ' 3,036
Net realized gain on securities transactions ' 120
Other operating income S 1,600
Total noninterest income 4,756
Noninterest expense
Employee compensation and benefits © 9,326
Occupancy expenses 2,260
Other operating expenses 4,897
Total noninterest expense 16,483
Eamings before provision for income taxes 5,235
Provision for income taxes
Current 1,403
Deferred 172
Total provision for income taxes 1,575
Net Earnings : ' $ 3,660 $
Basic earnings per common share $ 1.25 $
$ 124 3

Diluted earnings per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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*. Balance at January 31, 2002
Comprehensive Income:
Net earnings
Change in net unrealized gain on
securities available for sale, net of
reclassification and tax effects
Total comprehensive income
Stock-based compensation expense
Exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends:

Common - $0.32 per share
Balance at December 31, 2002
Comprehensive Income:

Net earnings

Change in net unrealized gain on

securities available for sale, net of
reclassification and tax effects
Total comprehensive income
~ Stock-based compensation expense
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends:

Common - $0.37 per share
Balance at December 31, 2003
Comprehensive Income:

Net earnings

Change in net unrealized gain on

securities available for sale, net of
reclassification and tax effects
Total comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation expense
Exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends:

Common - $0.40 per share
Balance at December 31, 2004

‘ GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated
Other Total
Preferred Common Additional Retained Comprehensive Treasury  Shareholders’
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Equity
- 3,250 12,659 17,723 848 (2,653) 31,827
- - - 4,377 - - 4,377
- - - - 490 - 490
- - - .- - - 4,867
- - 49 ’ - - - 49
- 2 17 - - - 19
; R - - - (1,167) (1,167)
- - - sy - - (951)
- 3,252 12,725° 21,149 1,338 (3,820) 34,644
- - - 3,844 - - 3,844
- - - - (874) - (874)
- - - - - - 2,970
- - 76 - - - 76
- - - - (161) (161)
- - - (1,081) - - (1,081)
- 3,252 12,801 23,912 464 (3,981) 36,448
- - 3,660 - - 3,660
- - - (200) - (200}
- - - - 3,460
- - 80 - - 80
- - 1 - - 27 28
. - - - - (225) (225)
- - - (1,167) - - (1,167)
- 3,252 12,882 26,405 264 (4,179) 38,624
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings ‘ $ 3,660 S 3844  § 4,377
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash from operating
activities: ,
Depreciation and amortization 1,316 1,149 1,129
Premium amortization, net of discount accretion 970 1,639 809
Net realized gain on securities transactions (120) (188) (380)
Gain on loans held for sale (331) (586) (272)
Provision for loan losses 930 - 1,075 1,260
Net change in loans held for sale (174) 5,069 (3,821)
Write-down of other real estate and repossessed assets 78 59 37
Net (gain) loss on sale of premises, equipment and other real estate (21) (32) 64
Provision for Aircraft Finance Trust impairment - 60 .
Loss on impairment of investment in Aircraft Finance Trust 120 113 i,
Stock-based compensation expense 80 76 49
Net change in accrued interest receivable and other assets (588) (96) 2,100
Net change in accrued interest payable and other liabilities (232) (91) 47
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,688 12,091 5,399
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of interest-bearing time deposits (6,047) (6,776) -
Securities available for sale: _
Purchases (36,207) (95,857) (95,863)
Proceeds from sales and principal repayments 30,975 100,524 70,962
Net purchases of premises and equipment (1,437) (642) (940)
Net proceeds from sale of premises, equipment and other real estate 771 1,537 3,338
Proceeds from benefits of insurance policies 1,076 ' - -
Net increase in loans ' (12,774) (6,439) (35,170)
Net cash used in investing activities (23,643) (7,653) (57,673)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits 25,896 (17,103) 41,671
Net change in federal funds purchased (7,295) 7,295 -
Proceeds from FHLB advances 20,500 13,000 20,000
Repayment of FHLB advances (16,364) (5,346) . {10,329)
Proceeds from long-term debt - : - 3,000
Purchase of treasury stock (225) (161) (1,167)
Exercise of stock options 28 - 19
Cash dividends paid (1,167) {1,081) (951)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 21,373 (3,396) 52,243
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3,418 1,042 €1))
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20,816 19,774 19,805
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 24,234 § 20,816 $ 19,774

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Guaranty Financial Corp., Inc., which wholly owns Guaranty Bond Bank, formally known as
Guaranty Bank (“Bank™). Guaranty Bond Bank has three wholly-owned non-bank subsidiaries, Guaranty Leasing
Company, Guaranty Company and GB Com, Inc.,, and partial interests in two non-bank subsidiaries, BSC
Securities, L.C. (“BSC”) and Independent Bank Services, L.C. (“IBS”). All entities combined are collectively
referred to as the “Company.” All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Nature of Operations

The Company operates eleven locations in Northeast Texas and one location in Fort Stockton, Texas. The
Company’s main sources of income are derived from granting loans primarily in Northeast Texas and investing in
securities issued by the U.S. Treasury, U.S. government agencies and state and political subdivisions. A variety of
financial products and services are provided to individual and corporate customers. The primary deposit products
are checking accounts, money market accounts; and certificates of deposit. The primary lending products are real
estate, commercial, and consumer loans. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial
portion of its debtors’ abilities to honor contracts is dependent on the economy of the Northeast Texas area.

Use of Estimates

To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information. These estimates
and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and actual
future results could differ. The allowance for loan losses, fair values of financial instruments, the status of
contingencies, and the value of the Company’s recorded investment in the Aircraft Finance Trust (“AFT”) are
particularly subject to change. ‘

Cash Equivalents and Supplemental Cash Flow Information

‘Cash and cash equivalents include cash, due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with other banks, which
have initial maturities less than 90 days and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for loan and deposit
transactions, and short-term borrowings with initial maturities less than 90 days.

In 2004, 2003 and 2002, cash paid for interest totaled $9,037, $10,554, and $12,505, respectively, and cash
paid for income taxes totaled $2,055, $780, and $1,320, respectively. Significant noncash transactions included
transfers from loans to other real estate and repossessed assets of $936, $1,196, and $3,988 in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively:

Securities -

Securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the
positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Securities are classified as available for sale when they might be
sold before maturity. Securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses
reported in other comprehensive income. Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the
time of purchase. Restricted securities such as ‘stock in the Independent Bankers Financial Corporation, the Federal
Home Loan Bank and Independent Bankers Capital Fund, L.P. are carried at cost.




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest income includes.amortization of purchase premiums and discounts. Gains and losses' on sales are
based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Securities are written down to fa1r value when a dechne in fair
value is not temporary.

Loans Held For Sale

Certain residential mortgage loans are originated for sale in the secondary mortgage loan market. These
loans are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair market value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any,
are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. To mitigate the interest rate risk, fixed
commitments may be obtained at the time loans are originated or identified for sale. All sales are made without
recourse. Gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized at settlement dates based on the difference
between the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage loans sold.

Loans
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity or

pay-off, are reported at the principal amount outstanding. Interest is calculated using the simple interest method on
the daily balance of the principal amount outstanding: ‘ .

_ Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans. Accrual
of interest on loans is discontinued either when reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of interest or
principal or when a loan becomes contractually past due by ninety days or more with respect to interest or principal,
unless such past due loan is well secured and in the process of collection. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual
status, interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest income. Interest
accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought fully current with respect to interest and principal
and when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both principal and
interest. Loans renegotiated in troubled debt restructuring are those loans on which concessions in terms have been
granted because of a borrower’s financial difficulty. ‘

_ Loan origination fees, prepa1d interest and certain direct origination costs are deferred, and the net amount
is amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield using a level yield method over the expected lives of the
related loans. The amortization of deferred loan fees and costs and the accretion of unearned discounts on non-
performing loans is discounted during periods of non-performance.

Allowance for Loan Losses

~ The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a provision for loan losses charged to
expense which represents management’s best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the
existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated
loan losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. While management utilizes its best judgment and information
available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a variety of factors, including the performance
of the bank’s loan portfolio, the economy, changes in real estate values and interest rates and the view of the
regulatory authorities toward loan classifications. :

Management estimates the allowance balance required, in part, by evaluating the loan portfolio for problem
loans. Potential problem loans are classified and separately monitored by management. Loans internally classified
s “special mention” are those that contain a weakness that, if left unattended, could develop into a problem
affecting ‘the ultimate collectibility of the loan. Loans internally classified as “substandard” are those loans with
clear and defined weaknesses such as highly leveraged positions, unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repayment
sources or poor financial condltlon which may jeopardize recoverability of the loan. Loans internally classified as
“doubtful” are those loans that have characteristics similar to substandard loans, but also have an increased risk that
a loss may occur or at least a portion of the loan may. require a charge-off if liquidated at present. Although loans
classified as substandard do not duplicate loans classified as doubtful, both substandard and doubtful loans may
include some loans that are past due at least 90 days, are on nonaccrual status or have been restructured. Loans
internally classified as “loss” are those loans that are in the process of being charged off.
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 :
' (Dollars in thousands)

NOTE1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICM‘IT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

" Loan 1mpa1rment is reported when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Loans are evaluated
for impairment when payments are delayed, typically 90 days or more,. or when analysis of a borrower’s operating
results and financial condition indicates the borrower’s underlying cash flows are not adequate to meet debt service
requirements and it is probable that not all principal and interest amounts will be collected according to-the original
terms of the loan. Impairment is evaluated in total for smaller-balance loans of similar nature such as residential
mortgage and consumer loans and on an individual loan basis.for other loans. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the
allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the
loan’s existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment- is expected solely from the collateral: Impaired
loans, or portions thereof, are charged off when deemed uncollectlble '

In addition to allocations made for specific class1ﬁed loans, general reserve allocations are made after
consideration of such factors as past loan loss experience, general prevailing economic conditions, the nature,
composition and volume of the loan portfolio, and other qualitative factors based on management’s judgment.

~While portions of the allowance may be allocated for specific credits, the entire allowance is available for
any credit that, in management’s judgment, should be charged-off,

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Maintenance, repairs and minor improvements are charged to noninterest expense as incurred.

Other Real Estate

Assets acquired, through, or in lieu of, foreclosure are initially recorded at\ fair value when acquired,
establishing a new cost basis. If fair value declines, a valuation allowance is recorded through expense. Costs after
acquisition are expensed.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered.
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the
Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to
pledge or excharge the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Goodwill

On January 1, 2002, the Company stopped amortizing goodwill and adopted a new policy for measuring
goodwill for impairment. No impairment of goodwill was recognized in connection with the adoption of this new
policy. Under the new policy, goodwill is assigned to reporting units. The Company currently operates as a single
reporting unit and all of the reported goodwill is associated with the entire Company. Goodwill is then tested for
impairment at least annually, or on an interim basis if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more-
likely-than-not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. Goodwill is tested for impairment
using a two-step, approach. The first step is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount,
including goodwill: If the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, goodwill is not
considered impaired and the second step is not required. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, the second step of the impairment test measures the amount of the impairment loss, if any. The second step
of the impairment test is to compare the implied fair value of goodwill to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount
of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to that excess.
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The implied fair value of goodwill is calculated in the same manner that goodwill is calculated in a
business combination, whereby the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of
that unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit -had been acquired in a business
combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was.the purchase price. The excess “purchase price” over the
amounts ass1gned to assets and liabilities would be the implied fair value of goodwill. ' ‘

Intanglble Assets and Other Long-leed Assets

Intanglble assets with definite useful hves are amortized on a stralght hne basis over their estimated useful
life. Intangible assets, premises and equipment-and other long-lived assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable from future
undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair value.

Income Taxes

Income tax-expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary
differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates, A
valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the expected amount to be realized.

Stock Compensation

In accordance with accounting standard SFAS No. 148, Accountmg for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123,” the Company uses the modified
prospective fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation prescribed by the standard. Under the
modified prospective method, the Company recognizes stock-based employee compensation expense as if the fair
value method had been used to account for all employee award$ granted, modified, or settled in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 1994. The fair value of options granted is determined using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. Stock-based employee compensation expense totaled approximately $80, §76, and $49 in 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectively.




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair-Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions.
Fair 'value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk,
prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. Changes in
assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the ¢stimates. The fair value estimates of existing on
and oft-balance sheet financial instruments do not include the value of anticipated future business or the value of
assets and liabilities not considered financial instruments.

Loss Contingencies

Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably
estimated. : '

Dividend Restriction

Banking regulations require the maintenance of certain capital levels that may limit the amount of
dividends that may be paid. Regulatory capital requirements are more fully disclosed in a separate note.

Restrictions on Cash

The Compaﬁy was requiréd.to have $793 and $299 of cash on hand ér on deposit with the Federal Reserve
Bank to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Deposits
- with the Federal Reserve Bank do not earn interest.

Earhings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is based on net eamnings divided by-the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS includes the dilutive effect of stock options granted using the
treasury stock method. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings
per share computations were as follows:

, 2004 2003 2002
Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic 2,917,984 2,922,558 2,991,453
Effect of stock options 44,529 30,722 21,253
Weighted average shares outstanding — Diluted 2,962,513 2,953,280 - 3,012,706




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is reported for all periods. Comprehensive income includes both net income and
other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income components and related taxes were as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Un_reahzed (loss) gain on avallable for-sale securities
arising during the period - $ (183 $ 1,135 § 1,122
Reclassification adjustment for amounts reahzed on '
securities sales included in net earnings (120) (188) (380)
Net unrealized (loss) gain | (303) (1,323) 742
Tax effect K 103 449 (252)
Total other corﬁprehensive (loss) income ' $ (200)  $ (874) % 490

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) published FASB Statement No.
123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123(R)” or the “Statement”). FAS 123(R) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions, including grants of employee stock options, be
recognized in financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability
instruments issued. FAS 123(R) permits the use of any option-pricing model that meets the fair value objective in
the statement. Modifications of share-based payments will be treated as replacement awards with the cost of the
incremental value recorded in the financial statements. The Company elected to transition to the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation during 2002 using the modified prospective method as prescribed by
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” an amendment of FAS
123(R). The Statement is effective at the beginning of the third quarter of 2005. The adoption of this statement will
not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.



GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FIN No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, establishes accounting guidance for consolidation of variable interest entities (VIE) that function to support
the activities of the primary beneficiary. Prior to the implementation of FIN 46, VIEs were generally consolidated
by an enterprise when the enterprise had a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority of voting
interest in the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 were effective immediately for all arrangements entered into after
January 31, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN 46 (FIN 46R) which clarified certain
implementation issues and revised implementation dates for VIE’s created before January 31, 2003. Under the new
guidance, special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or partially applied FIN 46 prior to
issuance of the revised Interpretation. Otherwise, application of FIN 46R (or FIN 46) is required in financial
statements of public entities that have interests in special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 13,
~ 2003. Application by public entities, other than small business issuers, for all other types of VIEs is required in
financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The Company deconsolidated the trusts created upon
the issuance of the junior subordinated debentures as of March 31, 2004. In May 2004, the Federal Reserve released
proposed rules for the capital treatment of junior subordinated debentures. The proposed rules would limit the
aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures and certain other capital elements to 25% of core capital, net of
goodwill. Because the Company’s aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures is below the limit of 25% of
Tier I capital, net of goodwill, the proposal has no effect on the amount of junior subordinated debentures that the
Company can include in Tier I capital. Additionally, the rules provide that junior subordinated debentures no longer
qualify for Tier I capital within five years of their maturity. See “NOTE 7 -~ Junior Subordinated Debentures” for
further discussion.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position 03-
3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer” (“SOP 03-3”). SOP 03-3 requires
loans acquired through a transfer, such as a business combination, where there are differences in expected cash
flows and contractual cash flows due in part to credit quality, to be recognized at their fair value. Under the
provisions of SOP 03-3 any future excess of cash flows over the original expected cash flows is to be recognized as
an adjustment of future yield. Future decreases in actual cash flow compared to the original expected cash flow is
recognized as a valuation allowance and expensed immediately. Under SOP 03-3, valuation allowances cannot be
created or “carried over” in the initial accounting for impaired loans acquired. SOP 03-3 is effective for impaired
loans acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004. The Company does not expect adoption to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

In March 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) reached consensus on the guidance
provided by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its
Application to Certain Investments” (“EITF 03-1”). The guidance is applicable to debt and equity securities that are
within the scope of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and certain other investments. EITF 03-1 specifics that an impairment
would be considered other-than-temporary unless (a) the investor has the ability and intent to hold an investment for
a reasonable period of time sufficient for the recovery of the fair value up to (or beyond) the cost of the investment
and (b) evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable within a reasonable period of time outweighs
evidence to the contrary. EITF 03-1 cost method investment and disclosure provisions are effective for reporting
periods ending after June 15, 2004. The measurement and recognition provisions relating to debt and equity
securities have been delayed until the FASB issues additional guidance. The implementation of this provision did
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Year-end securities available for sale were as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

December 31, 2004: Cost Gains Losses Value
U. S. government agency securities $ 6,099 § 9 3 39§ 6,159
Mortgage-backed securities 82,761 433 333 82,861
Equity securities 4,100 - - 4,100
Obligations of state and political subdivisions , 10,390 241 - - 10,631
§ 103350 % 773§ 372 8 103,751

December 31, 2003: ,

U. S. government agency securities $ 7,013 8§ 190 § 9 5 7,194
Mortgage-backed securities 86,785 . 776 313 87,248
Equity securities _ 3,902 - - 3,902
Obligations of state and political subdivisions 1,210 60 - 1,270
$ 98,910 $ 1,026 § 322 % 99,614

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations are backed by pools of mortgages that
are insured or guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), the Federal National
Mortgage Association (FNMA) or the Government National Mortgage Corporation (GNMA). Equity securities
include stock holdings in Independent Bankers Financial Corporation, the Federal Home Loan Bank, and
Independent Bankers Capital Fund, L.P.

At December 31, 2004, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than the U.S.
government and its agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity.

Securities with a fair value of approximately $60,214 and $56,784 at December 31, 2004, and 2003,
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Equity securities are shown separately since they do not have a maturity date. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers and/or issuers may have the right to call or
prepay their obligation with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due within one year ‘ $ 120 : $ 120
Due after one year through five years 10,938 11,109
Due after five years through ten years 30,973 31,165
Due after ten years ) 57,219 . 57,257
Equity securities 4,100 4,100
$ 103,350 $ 103,751




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Continued)

Sales of securities available for sale were as follows:

2004 - 2003 2002
Proceeds from the sale of securities $ 4,790 $ 44,504 $ 31,973
Gross realized gains 120 ‘ 250 427
Gross realized losses ' - 62 47

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss
position follows:

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Estimated Gross Estimated
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value
Securities available for sale:
December 31, 2004
U. S. government agency securities 3 24 % 1,976 $ 15 $ 1,986
Mortgage-backed securities , 73 23,611 260 22,893
Equity securities - - - -
Obligations of state and political subdivisions - - - -
$ 97 § 25,587 8§ 275 % 24,879
December 31, 2003; :
U. S. governmerit agency securities $ 9 3 2,005 § - 8 -
Mortgage-backed securities ‘ 313 32,040 - -
Equity securities - - - -
Obligations of state and political subdivisions - 30 - -
$ 322§ 34,075 § - 5 -

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on at least a quarterly basis, and
more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-
term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

At December 31, 2004, the securities available for sale with unrealized losses have depreciated 0.73% from
the Company’s amortized cost basis. All of these securities are either guaranteed by the United States Government
or secured by mortgage loans. These unrealized losses relate principally to current interest rates for similar types of
securities. In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by
the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results
of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition. As management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity,
or for the foreseeable future, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary.




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Year-end loans, excluding loans held for sale, were as follows:

2004 2003
Commercial $ 61,602 $ 55,285
Agriculture . 10,963 10,173
Real estate: .
Construction and land development 31,917 22,020
1-4 family residential ' 145,886 136,717
Farmland 16,178 20,267
Commercial 75,183 79,953
Multi-family residential 5,052 9,291
~ Consumer 28,833 30,612
Total gross loans 375,614 364,318
Less: '
Unearned discounts 29 48
Allowance for loan losses 4,154 3,906
Total net loans

$371,431 $360,364

Loans to executive officers, directors, principal shareholders and their affiliates were as follows:

Beginning balance § 17,487 $ 13,441
New loans 14,741 10,051
Repayments (9,563) (6,005)

Ending balance $ 22,665 $ 17,487

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:
2004 2003 2002

Beginning balance § 3906 § 3,692 § 3,346
Provision 930 1,075 1,260
Charge-offs (807) S (923)  (1,072)
Recoveries ; 125 62 158

Ending balance

Impaired loans were as follows:

$ 4154 § 3906 -$ 3692

3003

2004
Year-end loans with allowance allocated $. 3,011 § 2,072 .
Year-end loans with no allowance allocaied = -
Impaired loans S 3.011 2.072
Amount of the allowance allocated $ 725 % 740




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 3 ~ LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (Continued)

The average balance of impaired loans was $2,693 in 2004, $2,674 in 2003 and $3,265 in 2002. No
interest income was recognized on these impaired loans during 2004, 2003 or 2002. There were no commitments to
lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans were classified as impaired.

The following table presents information regarding nonperforming assets at the dates indicated:

December 31,

2004 2003
Nonaccrual loans ' $ 3,011 $ 2,072
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 565 489
Other real estate . _ 692 743
Total nonperforming assets $ 4268 § 3,304
Nonperforming assets to total gross loans and other real estate 1.13% 0.90%

If interest on nonaccrual loans had been accrued, such income would have been approximately
$353 in 2004, $214 in 2003 and $310 in 2002.

NOTE 4 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year-end premises and equipment were as follows:

2004 2003
Land § 3,132 § 2,604
Building and improvements ‘ 12,916 12,928
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,059 5,136
Automobiles o ‘ 166 108
, 21,273 20,776
Less accumulated depreciation ' 7,802 7,593

$ 13471 § 13,183

Depreciation expense totaled $1,149 in 2004, $1,024 in 2003 and $992 in 2002,




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 5 - INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Year-end interest-bearing deposits were as follows:

2004 2003
NOW accounts o S 50,051 § 44,400
Savings and money market accounts 84,060 75,335
Time deposits less than $100,000 125,031 119,670
Time deposits $100,000 and over ' 92,299 96,240

$ 351,441 § 335,645

Year-end scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

2004
12005 $ 162,199
2006 22,931
2007 ‘ 10,912
2008 ‘ - » 9,421
2009 , 11,737
Thereafter 130

S % 217330

Deposits of executive officers, directors and significant shareholders totaled-$10,158
and $11,466 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.




‘ - GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
N OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2004, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars i in thousands)

NOTE 6 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances were as follows: .

Fixed-rate advances, with mohthly interest payments, principal due in:.

2004
2005
2006

2007

2008
- 2009

" Current

Fixed-rate advancéé, with monthly principal and interest payments, principal due in: -

2004
2005
2006
2007

cee 2008 .

2009

Thereafter

Weighted
Average
“Rate 2004 2003
-5 - - % 6,000
: 2.63% 16,000 7,000
4.39% 22,500 21,000
3.60% - 7,000 7,000
3.32% 7,000 7,000
$ 52,500 $ 48,000
- 8 - $ . 364
523%. - 742 742
5.19% 292 292
5.19% 307 307
5.19% 302 302
5.18% 77 -7
5.18% 333 333
2,053 2,417
$ 54,553 § 50417

The maximum month-end balance of FHLB advances outstanding was $58,146 and $53,064 in 2004 and

2003, respectively. Average balances of borrowings outstanding during 2004 and 2003 were $53,227 and $50,511,
respectively. As a member of the FHLB system, the Bank has the ability to obtain borrowings up to a maximum
total of $109,515 subject to the level of qualified, pledgable 1-4 Family loans, Multi-family loans, small business
loans, small farm loans, and FHLB stock owned. The advances are collateralized by a blanket pledge of the Bank’s
1-4 Family loans, Multi-family loans, small business loans, small farm loans, and FHLB stock owned. The
weighted-average interest rates on these borrowmgs were 3 64% and 3. 91% at December 31, 2004 and December

31,2003, respectwely
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 - ’
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NOTE 7 - JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

In March 2000, the Company formed:Guaranty (TX) Capital Trust'I ("Trust:I") and on March 23, 2000,
Trust 1 issued $7,000 (seven thousand shares with a liquidation amount of one thousand dollars per security) of
10.875% Fixed Rate Capital Trust Pass-through Securities (“TruPS I”) to a third party in a pm ate placement.
Concurrent with the issuance of the TruPS [, Trust I issued common securities to the Company in the aggregate
liquidation value of $217. Trust 1 invested the total proceeds from the sale of the TruPS I and the common
securities: in $7,217 of -the Companys 10.875% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (the
“Debentures ). The Debentures I will mature on March 8, 2030, which date may be shortened to a date not earlier
than March 8, 2010, if certain conditions are met (iricluding the Company having received prior approval of the
Federal Reserve and any other required regulatory approvals). The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures I
were used to repurchase shares of the Company’s stock, provide a $1,500 additional capital contribution to the Bank
and prov1de for addmonal worklng capital to support growth.

T With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the Debentures

I are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company. The

terms of the Debentures I are such that they qualify as Tier 1 capital under the Federal Reserve’s regulatory capital

guidelines applicable to bark holding companies. Interest on the Debentures I is payable semi-annually on March 8

and September 8 of each year. The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to five consecutive years

‘following a suspension of dividend payments on all other capltal stock No pr1n01pa1 payments are due untrl‘
~ maturity on March 8, 2030. '

On any March 8 or September 8 on or after March 8, 2010 and prior to maturity, the Debentures I are
redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, on at least 30 but not more than 60 days notice, in whole or in
part, at the redemption prices seét forth in the table below, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption: '

If Redeemed During .. Percentage of If Redeemed During Percentage of

12 Months Beginning C Principal 12 Months Beginning Principal
' March 8, o Amount March 8, ' Amount
2010 . 105.438% 2016° 102.175%

_ 2011 ) 104.894% 2017 101.631%
72012 o 104.350% 2018 101.088%
2013 103.806% 2019 100.544%

2014 103.263% 2020 and after _ 100.000%

2015 _ 102.7»19%

‘ Upon the occurrence of certaln spemal events the Company w111 have the rrght to call the securities at par.
at'any time with the prlor approval of the Federal Reserve and any other requrred regulatory approvals

"I October 2002 the Company formed Guaranty (TX) Caprtal Trust I (”Trust II" and together with Trust I,
the "Trusts") and on October 30, 2002, Trust 11 issued $3,000 (three thousand shares with a hquldatlon amount of
ohe’ thousand per security) of Capital Trust Pass-through Securities (“TruPS IT”) to a third party in a prlvate
placement. Concurrent with the issuance of the TruPS II, Trust II issued common securities to the Company in the
aggregate liquidation value of $93. Trust II invested the total proceeds from the sale of the TruPS II and the
common securities in $3,093 of the Company's Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (the
“Debentures [1”). The Debentures II will mature on October 30, 2032, which date may be shortened to a date not
earlier than October 30, 2012, if certain conditions are met (including the Company having received prior approval
of the Federal Reserve and any other required regulatory approvals). The net proceeds from the sale of the
Debentures II were used to repurchase shares of the Company’s stock and provide for additional working capital to
support growth.
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NOTE 7 - JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES (Continued)

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the Debentures
II are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company. The
terms of the Debentures 11 are such that they qualify as Tier | capital under the Federal Reserve’s regulatory capital
guidelines applicable to bank holding companies. Interest on the Debentures II is payable quarterly on January 30,
April 30, July 30, and October 30 of each year at a fixed rate per annum equal to 7.94% until October 2012 and a
variable rate per annum, reset quarterly, equal to 3 month LIBOR plus 3.35%, thereafter. The interest is deferrable
on a cumulative basis for up to five consecutive years following a suspension of dividend payments on all other
capital stock. No principal payments are due until maturity on October 30, 2032.

On any interest payment date on or after October 30, 2012 and prior to maturity date, the Debentures II are
redeemable for cash at the option of the Compariy, on at least 30 but not more than 60 days notice, in whole or in
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date
of redemption.

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted FIN46R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (Revised December 2003). Upon adoption, the subsidiary
trusts that previously issued the outstanding TruPS were deconsolidated from the Company's consolidated financial
statements. Instead, the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to these subsidiary trusts are shown
as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense associated with the junior subordinated
debentures is shown in the consolidated statements of earnings. As a result, the Company's consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 reflect the adoption of FIN46R and include $10.3
million in junior subordinated debentures. The Company's consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2003 and for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 do not reflect the adoption of FIN46R and include $10.0
million in long-term debt, giving effect to the consolidation elimination of the $310,000 common ownership
interest. The overall impact of this deconsolidation did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements, v ‘

The securities held by the Trusts qualify as Tier I capital for the Company under Federal Reserve Board
guidelines. In May 2004, the Federal Reserve issued proposed rules for the capital treatment of junior subordinated
debentures. The proposed rules would limit the aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures and certain
other capital elements to 25% of core capital, net of goodwill. Because the Company’s aggregate amount of junior
subordinated debentures is below the limit of 25% of Tier I capital, net of goodwill, the proposal has no effect on
the amount of junior subordinated debentures that the Company can include in Tier { capital. Additionally, the rules
provide that junior subordinated debentures no longer qualify for Tier I capital within five years of their maturity.
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NOTE 8 - COMMON STOCK

A summary of issued and outstanding shares of common stock is as follows:

Common -+ Common -

Stock Treasury . .- Stock
Issued Stock _ _-Outstanding
Balance at December 31, 2001 3,250,016 - (245,588) 3,004,428
Purchase of treasury stock .- ‘ (74,500) - (74,500)_ B
" Exercise of stock options 2,000 - ~ 2,000
Balance at December 31, 2002 3,252,016 . (320,088) 2,931,928.
Purchase of treasury stock ‘ - (10,000) (10,000) .
Balance at December 31, 2003 - 3,252,016 (330,088) - 2,921,928
Purchase of treasury stock : - (11,451) (11,451)
Exercise of stock options - 2,200 2,200
Balance at December 31, 2004 3,252,016 (339,339) 2,912,677

NOTE 9 - STOCK OPTIONS

In 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors, with the approval of shareholders, adopted the 1998 Stock
Incentive Plan. Under the provisions of this plan, 1,000,000 shares have been reserved for issuance. The plan
provides for the grant of nonqualified stock options to certain officers of the Company at exercise prices equal to the
fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Options granted under the plan
generally expire after eight years and generally vest and become exercisable in five equal annual installments
commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant and annually thereafter.
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NOTE 9 - STOCK OPTIONS _(Continued)

A summary of activity in the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan follows:

Options Outstanding
Shares _

Available for Number Weighted-Average

Future Grants of Shares Exercise Price
Balance, December 31, 2001 . 910,500 89,500 3 9.30
Granted (20,000) 20,000 12.50
Exercised - (2,000) 9.30
Canceled ‘ 3,000 (3,000) 9.30
Balance, December 31, 2002 . 893,500 104,500 9.91
Granted (40,000) 40,000 15.36
Exercised : - ’ - ~ -
Canceled - - -
Balance, December 31, 2003 853,500 144,500 1142
Granted (5,000) 5,000 20.40
Exercised : - (2,200) 12.75
Canceled ‘ ‘ 6,000 (6,000) 14.72
Balance, December 31, 2004 854,500 141,300  $ 11.58

Other information regarding options outstanding and options exercisable as of December 31, 2004 is as
follows:

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Exercise Options Options Contractual
Price Outstanding Exercisable Life in Years
$ 9.30 84,500 67,600 33
12.50 15,000 6,000 5.2
15.23 36,800 7,200 6.3
19.50 : 3,000 _ - 7.6
21.75 2,000 - 7.8
Total 141,300 : 80,800 4.4
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NOTE 9 - STOCK OPTIONS (Continued)

In accordance with accounting standard, SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123, the Company transitioned to the fair value
method of accounting for stock-based compensation during 2002 using the modified prospective method prescribed
- by the standard. Under the modified prospective method, the Company began recognizing stock-based employee
compensation expense from the beginning of 2002 as if the fair value method had been used to account for all
" employee awards granted, modified, or settled in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1994. The fair value of .
options granted is determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. Stock-based employee compensation
expense totaled approximately $80, $76 and $49 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $4.87, $4.22 and $4.09 per
* option, respectively. Fair values of options are estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions for 2004, 2003 and 2002: risk-free interest rates of 4.50%,
3.20% and 5.00%; market price volatility factors of 10.6%, 26.0% and 28.7%; a weighted average expected life of
the options of 8 years; and dividend yields of 1.60%, 1.97% and 2.24%.

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

) The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan containing Section 401(k) provisions
. covering substantially all employees. The 401(k) plan provides for a matching contribution of up to 4% of a

participant’s qualified compensation. Total contributions accrued or paid for 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $368,
$410 and $462, respectively.

The Company maintains a non-qualified, non-contributory “Supplemental Retirement Plan.” The plan
covers a retired executive officer to provide benefits equal to amounts payable under the Company’s retirement pian
and certain social security benefits to aggregate a predetermined percentage of the officer’s final five-year average
salary. - The plan is non-funded. Amounts accrued or paid for 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $7, $9 and $11,

respectively.

‘ The Company established a non-qualified, non-contributory, “Salary Continuation Plan” in 1998. The plan
covers an executive officer to provide benefits equal to an amount which represents approximately 75% of projected
compensation at retirement as adjusted for amounts payable under the Company’s retirement plan and certain social
security benefits. This plan is non-funded. Amounts accrued for 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $97, $127 and $116,
respectively.

During 1998 the Company established a non-qualified, non-contributory, “Executive Incentive Retirement
Plan.” The plan covers a selected group of key personnel to provide benefits equal to amounts computed under an
“award criteria” at various targeted salary levels as adjusted for annual earnings performance of the Company.
Amounts accrued for 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $68, $51 and $50, respectively.

The Company has a bonus plan that provides guidelines whereby officers and employees can earn bonus
compensation based on the profitability of the Company. The bonus amounts are determined based on the
Company’s achievement of certain percentages of return on equity targets. This plan is approved and adopted
annually by the Board of Directors of the Company. The bonus pool under this plan for 2004, 2003 and 2002
totaled $472, $667 and $874, respectively.

F- 24




GUARANTY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES
. The sources of year-end gross deferred income tax assets and-'liabilitiesw’ere as follows:

. ‘
]

’

, 2004 72003

Deferred tax assets: , o : R

_Allbwarrce for'loan losses R ‘ I T 1,230", % 1,094

" Deferred Compensation - ‘ ‘ 338 I
Other . $ 9% $ 43

. Total deferred tax asset~ . v - L8 Le64 S 1,428

Deferred tax liabilities: o o |
‘Securrty basis ' . 8 35 8 (116)

* Unrealized gain on avallable for- sale securmes . (136) L (239) N
Depreciation - ' (1,197) (1,291)
Leasing transactions . x e (1,864) L o(1,714)
Deferred loan costs, net . e (396) ... (398) .
Other - - S JREEE " (60) L (69)

Total deferred tax hablhty A $ (3.788) S (3827)
Net deferred tax liability ‘ ‘ ‘I o - $ 2124 8 2,399

A recornciliation of the Company's effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income tax rate
for each reported perrod 1s as follows DR '

.

2004 2003 C2002

Statutory federal income tax rate C ‘ ‘ ‘ 33. 00% 35.00% - 35.00%,
Tax exempt income. : o 2.06)" (037 - (2.76)
Accretion of cash surrender value of hfe msurance X o (1.32) . (6.68) . ©(740)
Contribution of property _ (1.39) - -
Other, net - (0.20) 0.16 . (047
Effective income tax rate 30.08% 28.11% 24.37%

Guaranty Leasing Company is a substantial partner in various complex equipment leasing transactions
primarily originated in 1992, 1994 and 1995 involving leveraged leases. In November 1998, Guaranty Leasing was
informed by the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") that it has taken the position that certain losses taken by
the 1992 Partnership” during 1994, 1995 and 1996 of $302, $410, and $447, respectively, would be disallowed. In
October 2001, Guaranty Leasing was informed by the Service that it has taken the position that certain losses taken
by that Partnership during 1997 of $487, would also be disallowed. In September 2002, the Company received from
the Service a Notice of Final Partnership Administrative Adjustment disallowing these deductions. Based upon the
advice of counsel, the Company believes that it has correctly reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it
has obtained appropriate legal, accounting and appraisal opinions and authority to support its positions. The
Company recorded and expensed the tax affect of the disallowed deductions in 2002,

In February 2003, the Company filed a petition to begin the process to litigate the matter in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas the ("Texas Court"). In October 2003, the Government filed a
Motion to Transfer Venue from the “Texas Court” to the United States District Court for the Eastern District for
Virginia, (the "Virginia Court") but in the alternative, claimed the "Texas Court" had no jurisdiction to hear the case.
In November 2003, the Government filed a Motion to Stay Proceedings. In December 2003, and still in effect, the
“Texas Court” issued an Order to Stay Proceedings pending the Court’s ruling on the Government’s Motion to
Transfer Venue.
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)

In June 2004 in a similar case, of which the Company is not a party, the Government filed a brief with the
United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“the Federal Circuit”) essentially agreeing and concludmg
that Section 6226(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code is a venue provision and not a jurisdictional provision. This is
the same position of the Company in its pending litigation against the Government in the "Texas Court", In July
2004, the “Texas Court” granted a Motion to Continue Hearing on the United States Opposed Motion to Transfer
Venue. The “Texas Court” and the Company are currently awaiting a ruling from the “Federal C1rcu1t on the
Jjurisdictional v. venue issue.

As of December 31, 2004, the “Federal Circuit” has not made a definitive ruling on the issue of whether
Section 6226(a)(2) is jurisdictional or whether the statute is merely a venue provision. It is anticipated by legal
counsel that given the Government’s change of position, the "Federal Circuit" will determine that Section
6226(a)(2) addresses the issue of venue and not jurisdiction; but a definitive answer must await a ruling from the
"Federal Circuit". Oral arguments were presented to the "Federal Circuit" in October 2004 and it is anticipated that a
ruling will be issued within the near future.’ ,

In March 2004, the Company was informed by the Service that it had taken the position that certain losses
taken by the “1994 Partnership” during the tax years of 1994 through 1999 would be disallowed and tax owed
totaling $439, would be assessed. As.of December 31, 2004, the Company has not received a Notice of Final
Partnership Administrative Adjustment on' this Partnership. Based upon the advice of counsel, the Company
believes that it has correctly -reported these transactions for tax purposes and that it has obtained appropriate legal,
accounting and appraisal opinions and authority to support its positions.

In addition to the ongoing litigation regarding the Partnerships, the Service is currently in the process of
examining the tax deductions taken for the “1995 Partnership”. No determination has been made regarding the
disallowance of similar deductions taken by this Partnership. Should the Service ultimately disallow the related tax
deductions taken during the remaining years of the “1992 Partnership” as well as the other two Partnerships, the
Company will be required to recogmze an additional maximum tax liability of approximately $3,900 plus possible
penalty and interest. The Company is actively contesting the position of the Service in connection with this matter,
and has taken and will continue to take, appropriate steps necessary to protect 1ts legal position. Any final

determination with respect to the Partnerships will be bmdmg on‘the Company.
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NOTE 12 - NONINTEREST INCOME AND NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Other operating income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

. y , 2004 2003 2002
Fee income ‘ , ) 974 $. 925 $ - 863
Fiduciary income o 252 178 163
Eamings from key-man life insurance 203 - 251 236
Gain on sale of loans, net ‘ - 331 - 586 272
(Loss) gain on sdle of assets, net - $(143) - o - 97
Gain on sale of other real estate, net ' 21 ‘ 32 12
(Loss) from investment in AFT ‘ - (60) -
Impairment of investment in AFT : . (1200 (113) -
Other noninterest income 82 81 .76

$ 1600 § 1880 § 1719

During 2000, Guaranty Leasing acquired a 2.5% ownership interest in AFT for approximately $2,800. The
AFT ownership interest is classified as an Other Asset on the Company's balance sheet. As of December 31, 2004

and 2003, the book value of the' AFT ownership interest was $1,284 and $1,404, respectively.

During the second quarter 2003, based on limited marketability of the AFT investment, the uncertainty
surrounding the airline industry and general economic conditions, management of the Company believed the value
of its investment had been impaired, and recorded an impairment charge of $113. In addition to the impairment
charge, management recorded a loss of $60 in 2003. During 2004, an impairment charge of $120 was recorded.

Other operating expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2004 2003 2002
Legal and professional fees o $ 1,1s6 $ 1,168 § 933.
Director and committee fees o : 507 - 560 534
Advertising ' | 436 284 310
ATM and debit card expense : 437 363 317
Office and computer supplies 299 301 265
Postage 198 - 211 - 187
Phone expense 267 252 194

Other = . . o 1,597 1,308 1,249

3 4897 -3 4447 § 3989
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Company enters.into various transactions, which, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, are not included in the consolidated balance sheets. These transactions are
referred to as “off-balance sheet commitments.” The Company enters into these transactions to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These transactions include commitments to extend credit and letters of credit, which involve
elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts. recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company
minimizes its exposure to loss under these commxtments by. subjecting them to credit approval and monitoring
procedures. : : S

The Company enters into contractual commitments to extend credit, normally with fixed expiration dates or
termination clauses, at specified rates and for specific purposes. Customers use credit commitments to ensure that
funds will be available for working capital purposes, for capital expenditures and to ensure access to funds at
specified terms and conditions. Substantially all of the Company’s commitments to extend credit are contingent
upon customers maintaining specific credit standards at the time of loan funding. Management assesses the credit
risk associated with certain commltments to extend credit in determining the level of the allowance for credit 1osses

Letters of credlt are written condltlonal comm1tments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance

of a customer to a third party. The Company’s pohc]es generally require that letters of credit arrangements contain
security and debt covenants similar to those contained in loan agreements. In the event the customer does not
perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party, the Company would be required to fund
the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make is
represented by the contractual amount shown in the table below. If the commitment were funded, the Company
would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, no amounts ‘have been
recorded as liabilities for the Bank’s potential obligations under these guarantees.

Commitments and letters of credit 6utstandingv at year;énd were as follows:

Contract or
Notional Amount

2004 2003
Commitments to extend credit ‘ ‘ $ 29,166 $23,878

Letters of credit - . A 1,416 1,491

The Company is involved in certain claims and lawsuits occurring in the normal course of business.
Management, after consultation with legal counsel, does not believe that the outcome of these actions, if determined
adversely, would have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. See “NOTE 11-
Income Taxes” for further discussion.

NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATIONS'OF CREDIT RISK

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within the state. Investments in state
and municipal securities involve governmental entities within the Company’s market area. The Company also
maintains deposits with other financial institutions in amounts that exceed FDIC insurance coverage. The Company
has not experienced any‘losses in such-accounts -and believes it is not exposed to any significant credlt risk on cash
and cash equivalents.
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NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
state and federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective
action regulations involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments
by regulators about components, risk weighting, and other factors. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
can initiate regulatory action. Management believes, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, that the Company and the
Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

The following table sets forth the consolidated and bank only actual capital levels in addition to the
requirements under prompt corrective action regulations.

Minimum Required To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
_ Amount Ratio Amount _Ratio Amount  Ratio
December 31, 2004 '
Total capital to risk-weighted assets: :
- Consolidated ' 3 50,176 13.65% $ 29,401 8.00% n/a
Bank . 44,897 12.25% 29,327 8.00% $ 36,659 10.00%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets: C
Consolidated 46,022 12.52% 14,701 4.00% n/a
Bank ‘ 40,743 11.11% 14,664 4.00% 21,996 6.00%
Tier 1 capital to average assets: ‘
Consolidated 46,022 8.73% 21,081 4.00% n/a
Bank | 40,743 7.74% 21,045 4.00% 26306  5.00%
December 31, 2003 '
Total capital to risk-weighted assets: o
Consolidated $ 47,552 13.18% § 28,859 8.00% n/a
Bank 46,057 12.81% 28,767 8.00% $ 35,958 10.00%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets:
Consolidated 43,646 12.10% 14,429 4.00% n/a
Bank ‘ 42,151 11.72% 14,383 4.00% 21,575 6.00%
Tier 1 capital to average assets:
Consolidated 43,646 8.32% 20,987 4.00% /a
Bank: 42,151 8.05% 20,943 4.00% 26,179 5.00%

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Bank met the level of capital required to be categorized as well
capitalized under prompt corrective action regulations. In May 2004, the Federal Reserve released proposed rules
for the capital treatment of junior subordinated debentures. The proposed rules would limit the aggregate amount of
junior subordinated debentures and certain other capital elements to 25% of core capital, net of goodwill. Because
the Company’s aggregate amount of junior subordinated debentures is below the limit of 25% of Tier I capital, net
of goodwill, the proposal has no effect on the amount of junior subordinated debentures that the Company can
include in Tier I capital. Additionally, the rules provide that junior subordinated debentures no longer qualify for
Tier 1 capital within five years of their maturity. See “NOTE 7-Junior Subordinated Debentures” for further
discussion. :

The Bank is a state-charted banking association whose deposits are insured by the FDIC and therefore is
subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Texas Department of Banking and the FDIC. Because the
Federal Reserve regulates the bank holding company parent of the Bank, the Federal Reserve also has supervisory
authority that directly affects the Bank. In addition, upon making certain determinations with respect to the
condition of any insured bank, such as the Bank, the FDIC may begin proceedings to terminate a bank’s federal
deposit insurance.
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NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)

" - Dividends paid by the Company are mainly provided by dividends from its subsidiaries. However, certain
restrictions exist regarding the ability of its bank subsidiary to transfer funds to the Company in the form of cash
dividends, loans or advances. These guidelines do not currently restrict the Bank from paying normal dividends to
the Company.

NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for financial instruments except those described below:

Securities: Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. If a quoted market
price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar instruments.

Loans: The fair value of fixed-rate loans and variable-rate loans which reprice on an infrequent basis is
estimated by discounting future cash flows using the current interest rates at which similar loans with
similar terms would be made to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Deposits: The fair value of deposit liabilities with defined maturities and long-term debt is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using the interest rates currently offered for deposits or similar borrowings of
similar remaining maturities.

FHLB Advances, Junior Subordinated Debentures and Long-Term Debt: The fair value of borrowings is
estimated by discounting future cash flows using currently available rates for similar financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments: The fair values of these items are not material and are therefore not
included on the following schedule.

The estimated year-end fair values of financial instruments are detailed in the following table. The fair
value of financial instruments is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

2004 2003

Carrying Estimated Carrying  Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24234 $ 24234 $§ 20816 $ 20,816
Time deposits 12.823 12,849 6,776 6,801
Securities available for sale 103,751 103,751 99,614 99,614
Loans held for sale 1,749 1,749 1,244 1,244
Loans, net . 371,431 361,876 360,364 359,921
Accrued interest receivable 2,794 2,794 2,63‘8 2,638

Financial liabilities:

Deposits § 433,743 §$ 415,004 . $ 407,847 § 403,407
Federal funds purchased - Co- 7,295 7,295
FHLB advances 54,553 54,908 50,417 51,932
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310 14,396 - -
Long-term debt - - 10,000 12,181
Accrued interest payable 1,073 1,073 328 828
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NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

While these estimates of fair value are based on management’s judgment of appropriate factors, there is no
assurance that, were the Company to have disposed of such items at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the estimated fair
values would necessarily have been achieved at those dates, since market values may differ depending on varjous
circumstances. The estimated fair values at December 31, 2004 and 2003 should not necessarily be considered to

apply at subsequent dates.

In addition, other assets, such as property and equipment, and liabilities of the Company that are not
defined as financial instruments are not included in the above disclosures. Also, nonfinancial instruments typically
not recognized in financial statements nevertheless may have value but are not included in the above disclosures.
These include, among other items, the estimated earning power of core deposit accounts, the trained work force,

customer goodwill and similar items.

(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 17 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed financial information of the Company is as follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in subsidiaries
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Premises and equipment, net

Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
" Other liabilities
Junior subordinated debentures
Long-term debt '
Shareholders’ equity

| Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31, 2004 and 2003
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2004 2003
$ 4962 $ 1,260
43,348 45266
47 954
- 14
877 187
$ 49234 $47,681
300 923
10,310 ;
- 10,310
38,624 36,448

$ 49,234

$47,681
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NOTE 17 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Condensed Statements of Earnings
Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
Operating income V
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 6300 §$ 1,200 $ 2,100
Other income : 12
Total operating income : 6312 § 1,200 $ 2,100
Costs and expenses , , ‘ '
Interest expense ' 1,004 1,001 796
General and administrative 381 440 369
Total costs and expenses 1,385 1,441 1,165
Earnings before income tax 4,927 (241) 935
Provision for income taxes (141) - (153) -
Earnings before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 5,068 (88) 935
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (1,408) 3,932 3,442
Net earnings ‘ $ 3660 $ 3844 § 4377
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
2004 2003 2002

Cash flows from operating actjvities
Net earnings $ 3,660 % 3,844 $ 4,377
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash from ' '
operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,408 (3,932) (3,442)
Depreciation and amortization 14 9 9
Net change in other assets (388) (42) (129)
Net change in other liabilities (623) 303 138
Stock-based compensation expense 80 76 49
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,151 258 1,002

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of premises and equipment - - (29
Proceeds from insurance benefits 915 - -
Net cash used in investing activities 915 - 29

Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of treasury stock ' (225) (161) (1,167)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt : - - 3,000
Exercise of stock options 28 - 19
Cash dividends paid ' (1,167) (1,081) (951)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities : (1,364) (1,242) 901
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3,702 (984} 1,874
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,260 2,244 370
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4962 % 1,260 § 2,244
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NOTE 18 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED

Condensed quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

QUARTER ENDED 2004
(unaudited)
‘Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31

Interest income ‘ $ 7,036 § 6,787 §$ 6,512  § 6,700
Interest expense , 2,509 2,307 2,171 2,150

Net interest income 4,521 4,480 4.34] 4,550
Provision for loan losses 250 200 230 250

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4271 4,280 4111 4,300
Noninterest income 1,000 1,392 1,235 1,228
Noninterest expense 4,106 4272 4,090 4,114

Earnings before taxes 1,165 1,400 1,256 1,414
Provision for income tax expense 316 462 415 382
Net earnings $ 849 § 938 $ 841 % 1,032
Earnings per common share:

Basic ‘ $ 029 % 032 $ 029 § 0.35

Dituted A ' $ 029 § 032 8§ 028 $ 0.35

QUARTER ENDED 2003
(unaudited)
Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31

Interest income , $ 6,799 $ 6,722 % 7,001 % 7,042
Interest expense ‘2,229 2,413 2,771 2,829

Net interest income . 4,570 4,309 4,230 4,213
Provision for loan losses ‘ 300 250 150 375

Net interest income after provision for loan losses . 4,270 4,059 4,080 3,838
Noninterest income ' 1,155 - 1,209 1,187 1,386
Noninterest expense ‘ 3,918 3,963 4,004 3,952

Earnings before taxes 1,507 1,305 1,263 1,272
Provision for income tax expense 418 370 478 237
Net earnings $ 1,080 § 935 § 785  § 1,035
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 037 3% 032 § 027 § 0.36

Diluted ) 037 % 031 % 027 % 0.35
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